Materials for Regular annual general meeting of
shareholders of Gradus AD

10" of June 2019, 11 am, town of Stara Zagora 6009, Park Hotel Stara
Zagora, 50, Khan Asparuh Street, Tervel Hall

Agenda

1. Approval of the Activity Report of the Board of Directors of the Company for the year 2018;
Draft resolution: The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the Activity Report of the Board of
Directors of the Company for the year 2018.;

2. Approval of the Registered Auditor's Report for auditing the Annual Financial Statements of the
Company for the year 2018;

Draft resolution: The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the Report of the Registered
Auditor for the Verification of the Annual Financial Statement for the year 2018;

3. Approval of the Annual Financial Statements of the Company for the year 2018;

Draft resolution: The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the Annual Financial Statement of
the Company for the year 2018;

4. Approval of the report on the activity of the Investor Relations Director of the Company for the
year 2018;

Draft resolution: The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the report on the activity of the
Investor Relations Director of the Company for the year 2018;

5. Election of members of the Audit Committee of the Company on proposal of the Board of
Directors and determination of their remuneration;

Draft resolution: 1. The General Meeting of Shareholders elects the members of the Audit
Committee proposed by the Board of Directors as follows: Radka Dimcheva Peneva - Chairman of
the Audit Committee, Petya Radoslavova Panova - lvanova - Member of the Audit Committee and
Georgi Aleksandrov Babev - Member of the Audit Committee. 2. The General Meeting shall set a
monthly remuneration for each member of the Audit Committee at the gross amount of BGN 250
/two hundred and fifty Bulgarian levs/.

6. Approval of the Remuneration Policy of the Board of Directors of the Company;



Draft resolution: The General Meeting approves the Company's
remuneration policy prepared and proposed by the Board of Directors;

7. Approval of the Report on the Implementation of the Remuneration Policy of the
Board of Directors;

Draft resolution: The General Meeting approves the Report on the Implementation of the
Remuneration Policy of the Board of Directors of the Company;

8. Proposal for distribution of the profit for 2018.

Draft resolution: Draft decision: The Board of Directors proposes the profit for 2018 to be
distributed as follows: 1. The amount of BGN 24 360 871 (twenty four million three hundred sixty
thousand eight hundred and seventy-one Bulgarian levs) for the payment of dividends under the
following parameters: 1.1. Gross amount per share: BGN 0.10; 1.2. Commencement of payment of
dividends: 11 July 2019; 1.3. Term for payment of dividends: - three months; 1.4. Method of
payment of dividends: through Central Depository AD and branches of Unicredit Bulbank AD; 2. The
balance of BGN 2 339 901.43 /two million three hundred thirty nine thousand nine hundred one
and 0.43 Bulgarian levs/ to be transferred to the undistributed profit of the Company.

9. Deciding on the dismissal of the members of the Board of Directors of the Company for their
activity in 2018;

Draft resolution: The General Meeting of Shareholders releases from responsibility the members of
the Board of Directors of the Company for their activity in 2018;

10. Amending and supplementing the Articles of Association of the Company

Draft resolution: The Board of Directors proposes the following amendments and supplements to
the Articles of Association of the Company:

1. In Article 32 of the Articles of Association "Competence of the Board of Directors" a new item 18
is added to be read as:

,»18. Approves the annual consolidated financial statements of the Company.”

2. The previous item 18 of Article 32 of the Articles of Association becomes item 19.



13.
14.
15.

Annual Financial Statements of the Company for the year 2018;

Registered Auditor's Report for auditing the Annual Financial Statements of the Company for
the year 2018;

Activity Report of the Board of Directors of the Company for the year 2018;

Report on the Implementation of the Remuneration Policy;

Remuneration Policy of the Board of Directors of the Company;

Report on the activity of the Investor Relations Director of the Company for the year 2018;

CV of Georgi Aleksandrov Babev;

Diploma for higher education of Georgi Aleksandrov Babev;

Diploma for higher education of Georgi Aleksandrov Babev — University of Portsmouth;

. CV of Radka Dimcheva Peneva;
. Diploma for higher education of Radka Dimcheva Peneva;
. Declaration under art. 107, para 4 and 5 from the Law for independent financial audit for

Radka Dimcheva Peneva;

CV of Petya Radoslavova Panova- lvanova;

Diploma for higher education of Petya Radoslavova Panova- Ivanova;

Declaration under art. 107, para 4 and 5 from the Law for independent financial audit for
Petya Radoslavova Panova- Ivanova.
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GRADUS AD
SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

Note 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
BGN’000 BGN’000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 4 3 -
Investments in subsidiaries 5 264 960 264 960
Deferred tax assets 6 53 -
Total non-current assets 265 016 264 960
Current assets
Receivables on loans to related parties 21 55 389 -
Dividends receivable 21 9081 -
Cash and cash equivalents 7 3145 240
Total current assets 67 615 240
TOTAL ASSETS 332 631 265 200
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 8 243 609 221 000
Issue premium 8 62 287 44 200
Retained earnings/ (loss) 8 26 700 (1)
Total equity 332 596 265 199
Current liabilities
Trade payables 9 - 1
Tax liabilities 10 4 -
Payables to personnel and social security 11 31 -
Total current liabilities 35 1
TOTAL LIABILITIES 35 1
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 332 631 265 200
Date: 29 March 2019
Prepared by: Executive Director:
/Antoaneta Boeva/ /lvan Angelov/

Chairman of the Board of Directors:
/Luka Angelov/

The notes on pages 7 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of Gradus AD on 29 March 2019.



GRADUS AD

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Dividend income

Costs of materials

Costs of hired services

Depreciation / amortisation expenses
Personnel expenses

Impairment of assets

Other operating expenses

Operating profit / (loss)

Finance income
Finance costs
Finance income, net

Profit / (Loss) before taxes

Taxes
Net profit /(loss) for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the period

Date: 29 March 2019
Prepared by:

/Antoaneta Boeva/

2018 28.11.2017-

31.12.2017

BGN’000 BGN’000

12 27 175 -

(1) -

13 (404) 1)

(1) -

14 (386) -
21 (11)

15 (22) -

26 350 &)

16 309 -

17 (11) -

298 -

26 648 1)

18 53 -

26 701 1)

26 701 1)

Executive Director:
/lvan Angelov/

Chairman of the Board of Directors:
/Luka Angelov/

The notes on pages 7 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of Gradus AD on 29 March 2019.



GRADUS AD

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Balance on 28.11.2017
Issue of shares
Loss for the period

Revaluation

Retained earnings

Balance on 31.12.2017

Net profit for the period
Issue of shares

Share capital reserve [ uncovered loss Total equity
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
221 000 44 200 - 265 200

- - 1) 1)

221 000 44 200 1) 265199

- - 26 701 26 701

22 609 18 087 - 40 696

243 609 62 287 26 700 332 596

Balance on 31.12.2018

Date: 29 March 2019
Prepared by:
/Antoaneta Boeva/

The notes on pages 7 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of Gradus AD on 29 March 2019.

Executive Director:

Chairman of the Board of Directors:
/Luka Angelov/

/lvan Angelov/



GRADUS AD
SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Cash flows used in operating activity
Payments to suppliers

Payments to personnel

Taxes paid, other than income tax, net
Other payments for operating activity

Net cash flows used in operating activity

Cash flows used in investing activity
Purchases of intangible assets

Loans to related parties

Loans repaid by related parties

Interest proceeds from loans to related parties
Dividend proceeds

Net cash flows used in investing activity

Cash flows from financing activity
Owners’ monetary contributions

Proceeds from issue of capital
Other payments for financing activity
Net cash flows from financing activity

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Date: 29 March 2019
Prepared by:
/Antoaneta Boeva/

2018
BGN'000

(379)
(352)
32
(20)

28.11.2017-
31.12.2017
BGN'000

(719)

4)

(56 900)
1500
309

18 094

(37 001)

40 696
(71)

240

40 625

240

2 905

240

240

3145

240

Executive Director:

/lvan Angelov/

Chairman of the Board of Directors:

/Luka Angelov/

The notes on pages 7 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of Gradus AD on 29 March 2019.



GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

1. Status and subject of activity

Gradus AD, Stara Zagora, was established on 28 November 2017.
Management address; Stara Zagora, Industrialen quarter, Gradus Poultry Slaughterhouse
BULSTAT: 204882907

Gradus AD is a public company registered on 30 July 2018 by the Financial Supervision Commission.
The shares of the company are listed on the Bulgarian Stock Exchange.

The capital of the company consists of 243,608,710 (two hundred forty-three million, six hundred and eight
thousand, seven hundred and ten) non-preferential registered voting shares with nominal amount of BGN 1 each.

Object of activity of the Company: Investments in stocks and shares of companies, acquisition and management of
shares in Bulgarian and foreign companies; activity as a holding company; acquisition, assessment and sale of patents,
concession of licenses for the use of patents of companies, in which the Company has shares; financing of companies,
in which the Company has shares, as well as any other activity not prohibited by law, provided that if a permit or a
license is required, or registration for the purpose of carrying out any activity, then such activity shall take place
following the obtaining of such permit or license, respectively following the completion of such registration.

Ownership and management

Shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2018:
Luka Angelov Angelov — 40.72% of the capital,
Ivan Angelov Angelov — 40.72% of the capital

Legal entities — 15.65% of the capital
Individual shareholders — 2.91% of the capital.

Management bodies of the Company

e  General Meeting of Shareholders
e Board of Directors

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors at 31 December 2018 consists of three (3) members, as follows:

Luka Angelov Angelov — Chairman of the Board of Directors of Gradus AD
Ivan Angelov Angelov — Member of the Board of Directors and Executive Director of Gradus AD
Georgi Aleksandrov Babev - Member of the Board of Directors of Gradus AD

Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in its activities.
Members of the Audit Committee are:

e Radka Dincheva Peneva — Chair of the Audit Committee;
e Petya Radoslavova Panova — Member of the Audit Committee;
e Georgi Aleksandrov Babev — Member of the Audit Committee.

The average number of staff of Gradus AD at 2018 year-end is 2 employees hired under employment agreements.



GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. Basis of preparation of the separate financial statements

These separate financial statements have been prepared on a going concern and historical cost bases.
These financial statements are the separate financial statements of GRADUS AD.

The company will prepare consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS adopted by the European Union
until 30 April 2019.

Functional currency and currency of presentation

Pursuant to the requirements of the Bulgarian legislation, the Company keeps its accounting books and records and
prepares its financial statements in the national currency of the Republic of Bulgaria — the Bulgarian lev. Since 1
January 1999 the exchange rate of the Bulgarian lev has been pegged to the exchange rate of the Euro in a ratio of
EUR 1 =BGN 1.95583.

These separate financial statements have been prepated in thousands of Bulgarian leva (BGN’000), unless expressly
stated otherwise.

These separate financial statements of Gradus AD shall be included into the Company’s consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2018 in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for 2018.

3. Significant accounting policies

(a) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing on the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency using the closing exchange rate prevailing on the date of preparation of the statement of financial
position. Foreign exchange gain or loss originating from monetary items is the difference between the amortised cost
in the functional currency at the beginning of the period adjusted by the effective interest and the payments over the
period and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at end of the period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of measurement of the fair value. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Any foreign exchange differences, which occur upon translation into the functional currency, are reported as profits
and losses, except for differences arising on the translation into the functional currency of available-for-sale equity
instruments or eligible cash flow hedges that are recognised in other comprehensive income (if any).

(b) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

The carrying amount of intangible assets is tested for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount could exceed their recoverable amount. Intangible assets are derecognised from the statement
of financial position when they are permanently retired and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal,
or when they are sold.

Gains or losses on disposal of individual assets in the intangible assets group are determined by comparing the
remuneration the company expect to have the right to (disposal proceeds) and the asset’s carrying amount at the date
on which the recipient obtains control of the asset. They are stated net to other operating income / (losses), net on the
face of the statement of comprehensive income.

Subsequent expenses

Subsequent costs are capitalised only when they increase the future economic benefit from the specific asset to which
they relate. Any other costs, including costs of internally generated goodwill and trademarks, are recognised as an
expense when incurred.



GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Intangible assets (continued)

Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis in profits and losses over the estimated useful economic life
from the date on which they are ready for use.

Annual amortisation rate, %
. software 33.3

The methods of amortisation, useful lives and assets residual values are reviewed at each date of preparation of
financial statements.

(c) Investments

The long-term investments representing shares in subsidiaries are presented in the financial statements at acquisition
price (cost), which is:

- the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of shares and / or

- the value of the paid-up monetary shareholding and / or

- the value of the shares contributed in-kind against the shares issued, which value is determined by appraisers
appointed by the court, incl. the direct costs of acquiring the investment, less any impairment losses.

These investments are not traded on stock exchanges. This circumstance does not make it possible to provide market
price quotations in an active market that adequately reflect the fair value of those shares.

Investments held by the Company are subject to impairment testing. When there are conditions and indications of
impairment, it is calculated as the difference between the investment’s carrying amount and its recoverable amount
and is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (in profit or loss for the year). In case of subsequent
reversal of impairment, it is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Investments are derecognised when the entity transfers the rights originating from the asset to other persons when the
legal grounds for that arise and thus control on the economic benefits from the respective specific type of investment
is lost.

(d) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are an unconditional right of an entity to receive remuneration under contracts with customers and
other contractors.

Initial recognition

Initially, trade receivables are presented and measured at fair value based on the transaction price, which value is usually
equal to the invoice amount, unless they contain a significant financing component that is not charged additionally. If
this is the case, they are recognised at their present value calculated at a discount rate equal to the interest rate that is
considered inherent to the debtor.

Subsequent measurement

The Company holds trade receivables solely for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows and measures them
subsequently at amortised cost less the accumulated impairment for expected credit losses.

Impairment

Accounting policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Company applies the lifetime expected credit losses model for its trade receivables using the simplified approach
required by IFRS 9. The expected credit loss from receivables is stated as Impairment of assets in the statement of
comprehensive income.



GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Trade and other receivables (continued)

Accounting policy applicable until 31 December 2017

The impairment of trade receivables is valued using the model of ‘suffered losses. Losses on doubtful and bad debts
are estimated, when the collection of the entire sum or part thereof is highly uncertain. Bad debts are written off when
the legal grounds for this occur.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and cash in current accounts, and cash equivalents comprises deposits with banks with
an original maturity of three months or less, and deposits with longer maturity that are freely disposable by the
company in accordance with the arrangement with bankers during the term of the deposit.

Subsequent measurement
Cash and cash equivalents in banks are measured subsequently at amortised cost, less any accumulated impairment
for expected credit losses.

For the purposes of the preparation of the cash-flow statement:

e cash equivalents from customers and cash payments to suppliers are presented gross, VAT inclusive (20%);

e interest received on current accounts are presented as operating activity;

e VAT paid under purchases of long-term assets is specified on the “payments to suppliers” line to the cash-
flows from operating activity, as long as it is included into and recovered together with the operating flows
of the company for the respective period (month);

e proceeds from and payments on overdrafts are reported net by the company.

(f) Financial instruments

Accounting policy applicable until 31 December 2017:

A financial instrument is each contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another enterprise.

Financial assets
Initial recognition, classification and measurement

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified in three groups according to which they are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income and at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company initially measures financial assets at fair value and, in the case of financial assets which are not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, plus the direct transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are an exception - they are measured on the basis of the transaction price determined in
accordance with IFRS 15.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade (transaction) date, i.e., the date that
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. In order for a financial asset to be classified
and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test
and is performed at an instrument level.

10



GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
o Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
o Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income with recycling of cumulative gains and
losses (debt instruments)
o Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (debt and equity instruments).

Classification groups
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
o The financial asset is held and used within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and
o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method. They are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and loans to
related parties.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt or equity instruments)
The Company has no such assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The Company has no such assets.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:
e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

11



GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.

Expected credit loss on financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance (impairment provision) for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

For the purposes of calculation of expected credit losses on loans to related and third parties, and cash and cash
equivalents with banks, the Company has adopted the general approach to impairment as set by IFRS 9. According
to this approach, the Company applies a three-stage impairment model based on changes compared to the initial
recognition of the financial instrument’s credit quality.

Expected credit losses are recognised in two stages.

a. A financial asset that has not been credit impaired at its initial origination/acquisition is classified in phase
1. Since its initial recognition, its credit risk and qualities are subject to continuous monitoring and analyses. The
expected credit losses on financial assets classified in Phase 1 are determined on the basis of expected credit losses
resulting from possible default events which could occur within the next 12 months of the life of the asset concerned
(12-month expected credit losses for the instrument).

b. In cases where, after initial recognition of a financial asset, its credit risk increases significantly and as a
result its qualities deteriorate, it is classified in phase 2.

Expected credit losses on financial assets classified in phase 2 are determined over the remaining life (term) of the
relevant asset (lifetime expected credit losses for the instrument).

The company's management has developed a policy and a set of criteria for analysis, identification and evaluation of
a “significant increase in credit risk”.

In cases where the credit risk of a financial asset increases to a level indicating that an event of default has occurred,
the financial asset is considered to be impaired and it is classified in phase 3. At this stage, losses incurred by the
relevant asset for its entire remaining lifetime (term) are established and calculated.

The Company adjusts expected credit losses based on historical data using forecast macroeconomic indicators that
are found to be correlated and are expected to affect the amount of the expected credit losses in the future.

In calculating expected credit losses on trade receivables, assets under contracts with customers and lease receivables,
the Company applies a simplified approach to calculate expected credit losses and does not follow subsequent changes
in their credit risk. According to this approach, the Company recognises an allowance (impairment provision) based
on the expected credit loss over the entire period of the receivables at each reporting date.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition, classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, trade and other payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

12



GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification.

Classification groups
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The Company has no such liabilities.

Loans and other borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured by the Company at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when the relevant financial liability is derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of comprehensive income (in the profit or loss for the year).

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

This requirement derives from the idea of the real business nature of the company's relationship with a counterparty
that, in the simultaneous existence of these two requirements, the expected actual cash flow and benefits from these
estimates to the enterprise is the net flow, i.e. the net amount reflects the actual right or liability of the Company
originating from these financial instruments — in any case, its right to receive or pay only the net amount. If both
conditions are not met simultaneously, it is assumed that the rights and obligations of the Company in respect of these
counter-balances (financial instruments) are not covered only and solely by the receipt or payment of the net amount.

The netting policy is also linked to the assessment, presentation and management of the actual credit and liquidity
risks associated with these counter-balances.

Criteria applicable to establishing the existence of a current and legally enforceable netting right are as follows:
« the right should not depend on a future event, i.e. it shall be enforceable not only if a particular future event
occurs;
« it should be possible to exercise the right and to defend it by employing legal means in the course of (taken
cumulatively):
- the ordinary activity,
- in case of default/delay, and
- in case of bankruptcy and insolvency.

The applicability of criteria shall be assessed against the requirements of Bulgarian legislation and the established
arrangements between the parties. The condition for the existence of a current and legally enforceable netting right
is always and mandatorily assessed together with a second condition: for the existence of obligatory intention to settle
these balances on a net basis.

13



GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
Accounting policy applicable until 31 December 2017:

Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the category of loans and receivables, including cash and cash
equivalents. The classification depends on the substance and objectives (purpose) of the Company’s financial assets
at the date of their initial recognition.

Financial assets are derecognised from the Company’s statement of financial position when the rights to receive the
cash flows from these assets have expired or have been transferred, and the Company has transferred significantly all
risks and rewards from the ownership over the asset to another entity (person).

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether objective evidence exists that a financial asset not carried at
fair value through profit or loss should be impaired. A financial asset is impaired only if there are objective evidence
for impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset and this loss event
has had an impact on the estimated future cash flows from this asset and can assessed reliably.

Objective evidence of impairment of a financial asset may include default or delinquency of the debtor, restructuring
of the dent to the Company under conditions which the Company would not have considered otherwise, indications
that a debtor will enter into insolvency proceeding, adverse changes in the payment status of a debtor, business
conditions that result in defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a particular security.

The Company assesses whether evidence of impairment of loans and receivables exists for a specific asset or
collectively. All receivables that are individually significant are checked for specific impairment. All individually
significant loans and receivables, for which there is no specific impairment, are then assessed collectively for
impairment, which has occurred but have not yet been identified. Loans and receivables that are not individually
significant are included in a collective assessment of impairment, grouped by similar risk characteristics.

When assessing collectively for impairment, the Company uses historical trends of the probability of default, recovery
time and the amount of losses incurred, adjusted by the management's judgement as to whether the current economic
and credit conditions are such that actual losses are likely to be greater or lower than those assumed on the basis of
historical trends.

The amount of the impairment loss on a financial asset carried at amortised cost is measured as the difference between
the book value and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and reported in an allowance account reducing the amount of loans
and receivables. When an event, which has occurred after an impairment has been recognised, reduces the impairment
loss, this reduction is reversed through profit or loss.

(9) Trade and other payables

Trade and other current liabilities in the statement of financial position are stated at cost of acquisition, which is
deemed to be the fair value of the transaction and will be paid in future against the goods and services received. In
cases of deferred payments beyond the usual credit term on which no additional payment of interest is envisaged or
interest is quite different from the usual market interest rate, the liabilities are initially assessed at their fair value at
the discount rate inherent to the company, and subsequently, at amortizable cost.

(h) Interest-bearing loans and other financial resources provided

Loans and other financial resources are presented initially at an acquisition price which is considered fair value of
consideration given in a transaction, net of direct costs associated with these loans and resources. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and other resources given, are measured subsequently and
presented in the statement of financial position at amortised cost determined by applying the effective interest rate
method. The amortised cost has been calculated by taking into account of all types of charges, commissions and other
amounts relating to these loans.
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GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Interest-bearing loans and other financial resources provided (continued)

Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as finance income or finance costs during
the amortisation period.

Interest income is presented depending on the phase in which the relevant loan or other receivable on financial
resource granted, as the case may be, has been classified using the effective interest rate method.

(i) Income

The company’s usual income consists of dividends.

Dividend income is recognized in the current profit or loss on the date the Company acquires the right to receive the
payment as a result of a decision taken for the allocation of the accumulated profits of the subsidiaries.

Measurement of a contract with a customer
There is a contract with a customer if:

- the contract has been approved by the parties;
- each party’s rights can be identified;
- the payment terms can be identified;

If a contract does not yet meet any of the above criteria, the entity will continue to re-assess the contract in every
reporting period. The consideration received under such a contract is recognized as a liability (a contract liability) in
the statement of financial position until all criteria for recognition of a contract with a customer are satisfied and the
Company performs its obligations. In the initial assessment of its contracts with customers, the company makes further
analysis and judgement whether two or more contracts must be considered as combination and be accounted for as
one. The Company recognises income for each individual performance obligation at the level of an individual contract
with a customer by analysing the type, duration and terms and conditions of each specific contract.

Measurement of revenue from contracts with customers

Revenues is measured on the basis of the transaction price determined for each contract. The transaction price is the
amount of consideration to which the company expects to be entitled, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. When determining the transaction price, the company takes into account the terms and conditions of the
contract and customary business practices, including the impact of variable consideration, the existence of a
significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer.

(1) Finance income and finance costs

Finance income is reported in the statement of comprehensive income (in the profit or loss for the year), when occurs,
and comprises of: interest income on loans granted and term bank deposits, interest income on receivables, and net
foreign exchange gains.

Finance income is presented separately from finance costs on the face of the statement of comprehensive income.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets in
phases 1 and 2. Interest income on financial assets in phase 3 is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
their amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount adjusted by expected credit losses).

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported net as either finance income or finance costs depending on whether
the foreign currency differences represent a net gain or a net loss.
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GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(K) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive liability as a result of past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the liability.
Provisions are determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows with a pre-tax interest rate that reflects the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Interest accrued on the discounted value is recognised as
finance costs.

(I) Income tax

Income tax for the reporting period consists of current and deferred taxes. Income tax is recognised in profit and loss,
except to the extent that it relates to business combinations or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit or loss for the year, using the tax rates that are
enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Current income tax includes also any tax effects of dividends.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax is recognised for all temporary differences that arise
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
the accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation
authority.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses, credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred income
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future benefits
will be realised.

In assessing its current and deferred taxes the Company takes into account the effect of uncertain tax items and whether
additional taxes or interest might be due. The Company is of the opinion that the tax liability accruals are adequate
for all open tax years based on an assessment of lots of factors, including interpretation of tax laws and previous
experience. The assessment is based on estimates and assumptions and may include judgements for future events.
New information may appear as well, according to which the Company may change its judgements on the adequacy
of the existing tax liabilities; any such changes in the tax liabilities would affect the tax expense for the period in
which such assessment is made.

(m) Effects of the first-time adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15

The company presents comparative information in these financial statements for one previous period. Where
necessary, comparative data are reclassified (and restated) in order to achieve comparability to changes in presentation
in the current year.

An exception to this rule is the presentation of the effects of the first-time adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The Company has chosen to apply the modified retrospective
approach to the first-time adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. In the first-time adoption of
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the Company has applied the exemptions (relief). All adjustments due to the first-time
adoption of these two standards have been reported in the equity (to retained earnings) at 1 January 2018. Pursuant to
the above-mentioned approaches, the 2017 comparative data has not been restated. It is presented and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (repealed), IFRS
7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure, IAS 18 Revenue (repealed), and IAS 11 Construction Contracts (repealed), and
the interpretations related thereto.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Effects of the first-time adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments replaces the provisions of IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
in connection with the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedging accounting. New classification
criteria and groups of financial assets have been introduced, and respectively, new rules for their subsequent
measurement and the recognition of interest income. Upon the first-time adoption of IFRS 9 Financial instruments,
the Company applied for the first time the exemptions (relief) by imposing the requirements of the standard on the
financial instrument contracts opened on 01 January 2018.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaces 1AS 18 Revenue, which covers contracts for goods and
services, as well as IAS 11 Constriction Contracts, which covers construction contracts and related SIC and IFRIC.
The adoption of the new IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers significantly increases the use of estimates
upon revenue recognition and provides guidance on the reporting of contract costs. The Company has applied the
requirements of IFRS 15 to all contracts not yet completed as of 01 January 2018, using the practical relief for
modified customer contracts.

On 1 January 2018 management analysed the Company’s financial instruments and had not identified any instruments
that should be reclassified.

The cumulative effect of the first-time adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 is immaterial and therefore, it has not been
reported in these financial statements.

(n) Key estimates and assumptions
Estimates since 01 January 2018

Calculation of expected credit losses on loans granted, trade receivables and assets under contracts with
customers

The measurement of the expected credit loss for financial assets carried at amortised cost (loans granted, receivables and
assets under contracts with customers) is an area, which requires the use of significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behaviour of customers and debtors (for example, the likelihood of counterparties not fulfilling
their obligations and the resulting losses).

Aiming at achieving compliance with these requirements, the company's management makes a number of important
judgments, such as:

(a) defines criteria for identifying and evaluating a significant increase in credit risk;

(b) selecting appropriate models and assumptions for measuring expected credit losses;

(c) formation of groups of similar financial assets (portfolios) for the purpose of measuring expected credit
losses,

(d) establishing and evaluating the correlation between historical default rates and behaviour of certain
macroeconomic indicators to reflect the effects of forecasts in future when calculating expected credit losses.

Estimates when recognising revenue from contracts with customers

When recognising revenue and preparing the annual financial statements, management makes different judgements,
estimates and assumptions, which influence the reported income, expenses, assets and liabilities under contracts, and
their corresponding disclosures. Despite the uncertainty regarding these assumptions and estimates, the Company
does not expect substantial adjustments to the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in the future, and
respectively, the reported costs and revenue.

Estimated for 2017 and 2018

Useful life of fixed assets - The Company examines the estimated useful lives of the depreciable fixed assets at the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(n) Key estimates and assumptions (continued)

Recognition of tax assets - When recognising deferred tax assets, it is assessed the probability that individual
deductible temporary differences will reverse in the future and the ability of the Company to generate sufficient tax
profits to offset them against those profits.

Impairment of investments — Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost. At the end of each reporting period,
management assesses whether there are any indications of impairment of its investments in shares and subsidiaries.
Management found no indications of impairment of its investments in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018.

(o) New standards and interpretations

In the current year, the Company adopted all new and revised IFRS, which are relevant to its activity and are effective
for the reporting period commencing on 1 January 2018. The effects of the application of these new standards are as
follows:

Standards issued by IASB/IFRIC and endorsed by the EU, but not yet effective and not adopted earlier

Standards issued by the IASB / IFRIC that have not yet entered into force at the date of issue of the financial statements
and have not been adopted earlier are listed below. The company intends to adopt these standards when they become
effective.

IFRSIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019) - Management does not expect that the adoption of this interpretation will have a significant effect on the
financial statements of the Company.

Amendment to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) - Management does not expect that the adoption of this
amendment will have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company.

IFRS 16 Leases (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The Company adopts IFRS 16
on 1 January 2019 and intends to apply the modified method of implementation. IFRS 16 requires lessees to report
all leases under a unified model requiring their recognition in the balance sheet, an approach similar to that applied to
finance lease reporting under 1AS 17. The Company has reviewed and analysed all lease agreements in the light of
the requirements of the new IFRS 16. The standard will mainly affect the company's operating leases as a lessee. The
effects of application of IFRS 16 are expected to be immaterial.

Amendment to IAS 19 Employee Benefits — Amendment, shortening or settlement of the plan (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) - Management does not expect that the adoption of this amendment
will have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to different standards Improvements to IFRS (2015-2017 cycle), resulting from the Annual Project
for Improvements to IFRS (IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12, and IAS 23), mainly for the purpose of elimination of any
discrepancies and interpretation of formulations (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) -
Management does not expect that the adoption of these amendments will have a significant effect on the financial
statements of the Company.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) New standards and interpretations (continued)

Standards and interpretations issued by IASB, but not yet endorsed by EU

Currently, the IFRS adopted by the EU do not differ significantly from those adopted by the IASC, except for the
following new standards, amendments to existing standards and new interpretations, which have not been adopted by
the EU vyet as at the date of approval of these financial statements (the dates of entry into force specified below refer
to the complete IFRS):

IFRS 17 Insurance Agreements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021) - Management
does not expect that the adoption of this standard will have a significant effect on the financial statements of the
Company.

Revision of the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 01 January 2020) - Management does not expect that the adoption of these amendments will have a significant
effect on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January
2020) - Management does not expect that the adoption of these amendments will have a significant effect on the
financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020) -
Management does not expect that the adoption of these amendments will have a significant effect on the financial
statements of the Company.

The Company expects the adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretation will not have a significant
effect on the Company's financial statements during their initial implementation.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

4. Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of software.

In BGN"000 Software Total
Book value
Balance on 01 January 2018 - -
Additions 4 4
Balance on 31 December 2018 4 4
Amortisation
Balance on 01 January 2018 - -
Amortisation for the period (1) (€3]
Balance on 31 December 2018 (1) (1)
Net book value
Net book value on 01 January 2018 - -
Net book value on 31 December 2018 3 3
5. Investments in subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2018, the Company held shares in the following companies:
Company Country Share — BGN Equity Sh_a(;i
Lora-2004 EOOD Bulgaria 11 100 100
Zhyuliv EOOD Bulgaria 16 200 100
Millennium 2000 EOOD Bulgaria 35 700 100
Gradus-1 EOOD Bulgaria 149 760 100
Gradus-98 AD Bulgaria 52 200 99,94
Total: 264 960

Gradus-1 EOOD holds 96% of the capital of Gradus-3 AS, which is also the effective shareholding of Gradus AD in

Gradus-3 AD.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

6. Deferred tax assets

The recognised deferred tax assets relate to the following:

Assets Liabilities Net
31.12.201 31.12.201 31.12.201 31.12.201
In BGN 000 31.12.2018 7 31.12.2018 7 8 7
Tax loss 50 - - - 50 -
Income of individuals 2 - - - 2 -
Provision for expected
. 1 - - - 1 -
credit losses
Net tax assets 53 - - - 53 -

Movements in temporary differences during the period 01.01.2018 — 31.12.2018

In BGN’000
Balance Sheet Profit and loss Balance Sheet
31.12.2017 31.12.2018
Tax loss - 50 50
Income of individuals - 2 2
Provision for expected credit losses - 1 1
Total: - 53 53
7. Cash and cash equivalents
In BGN’000 31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Cash on hand 1 1
Cash in current accounts 3144 239
Total cash and cash equivalents 3145 240

The Company assesses the expected credit losses on cash and cash equivalents as immaterial. The company has not
accrued expected credit losses on cash and cash equivalents.
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8. Equity

Share capital
The share capital consists of:

Number of Number of Value in
voting shares non-voting BGN’000
shares
At 31 December 2017 221 000 000 - 221 000
At 31 December 2018 243 608 710 - 243 609

The total number of shares at 31 December 2018 is 243,608,710 with nominal value of BGN 1 each. The share capital

is paid fully.

The shareholders of Gradus AD as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Company Number of Number of Shareholding
voting shares non-voting %
shares
Ivan Angelov Angelov 99 195 645 - 40,72
Luka Angelov Angelov 99 195 645 - 40,72
Legal entities 38134 878 - 15,65
Individual shareholders 7082542 - 2,91
Total: 243608 710 - 100,00
Equity
In BGN’000 31 December 31 December

Share capital
Issue premium

Retained earnings / loss

Total equity

2018 2017
243 609 221 000
62 287 44 200
26 700 1)
332596 265 199

The share capital is presented at the nominal value of the shares issued and paid. Receipts above their nominal value

are reported as issue premium.

9. Trade payables
In BGN’000

Payables to suppliers

10. Tax liabilities
In BGN’000

Tax on expenses
Personal income tax liabilities

31 December
2018

31 December
2017

1

1

31 December
2018

1
3

31 December
2017

4

22



GRADUS AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

11. Payables to personnel and for social security

In BGN’000

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
Payables to personnel 29 -
Social security payable 2 -
Total 31 -
12. Dividend income
In BGN’000
31 December 28.11.2017-
2018 31.12.2017
Gradus-1 EOOD 2 500
Millennium 2000 EOOD 11331 -
Lora-2004 EOOD 350 -
Gradus-98 AD 9494 -
Zhyuliv EOOD 3500 -
Total 27175 -
See note 20 Related party transactions.
13. Costs of hired services
In BGN’000
31 December 28.11.2017-
2018 31.12.2017
Commission fees 225 -
Consulting services 70 -
Audit costs 41 1
Marketing and advertising costs 33 -
Translation / interpretation services 12 -
Bank current account maintenance charges 9 -
Subscription fees 4 -
Rent 1 -
Other expenses 9 -
Total 404 1
14. Personnel expenses
In BGN 000
31 December 28.11.2017-
2018 31.12.2017
Current remuneration 372 -
Social security contributions 14 -
Total 386 -
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15. Other operating expenses

In BGN’000

Entertainment costs
Business trips expenses
Tax on expenses

Total

16. Finance income
In BGN’000

Interest income on loans granted
Total

17. Finance costs
In BGN’000

Bank charges
Total

18. Tax expenses

Tax profit for the year as per the tax return

Current income tax expense for the year — 10% (2017: 10%)
Differed income taxes relating to:

Occurrence and reversal of temporary differences

Total income tax benefit recognized in the statement of comprehensive

income
Reconciliation of income tax expense determined vs. accounting result
Accounting profit / (loss) for the year

Income taxes - 10% (2017: 10%)
Non-deductible income

Total income tax benefit recognized in the statement of comprehensive

income

31 December
2018

11

10
1

28.11.2017-
31.12.2017

22

31 December
2018

309

28.11.2017-
31.12.2017

309

31 December
2018

11

28.11.2017-
31.12.2017

11

2018

53

2017

53

2018

26 648
(2 665)
2718

2017

@

53
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19. Financial instruments
Categories of financial instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
In BGN’000

Related party receivables 9081 -
Receivables on loans to related parties 55 389 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3145 240
Total: 67 615 240

In the course of its ordinary activity the Company is exposed to various financial risks, the most significant of which
are the following: market risk (including currency risk, risk of changes in fair value and price risk), credit risk, liquidity
risk and risk of interest-bearing cash flows.

The overall risk management is focused on difficulties in forecasting financial markets aimed at minimising the
potential negative effects that might impact the financial results and performance of the Company.

Financial risks are identified, measured and monitored currently, using different control mechanisms, in order to
determine adequate prices of company’s goods and to assess adequately the forms of maintenance of free liquidity
without permitting unjustified concentration of a particular risk.

Risks faced by the Company are managed on an ongoing basis in accordance with a policy elaborated by the General
Manager. The General Manager has set the main principles of the overall financial risk management on the basis of
which the specific procedures for management of specific risks, such as currency risk, price risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, and liquidity risk, have been developed.

Credit risk
The main financial assets of the company comprise cash on hand and cash in bank accounts, and receivables on loans
granted.

Credit risk is the risk that the company's counterparties might not be able to repay fully and within the usual time
limits the amounts they owe on credit receivables.

Loans granted and financial guarantees

The Company measures the credit risk of loans to related parties by using the probability of default (PD), exposure at
default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD). To determine the credit risk, the company's management uses internal
estimates that reflect the probability of default for individual counterparties. The activity, financial performance of
the borrower and the value of the collateral received is included in the risk assessment.

The Company considers that a financial instrument has undergone a significant increase in credit risk (migration from
phase 1 to phase 2) when one or more of the following quantitative or qualitative criteria are met:

. the borrower is past due by more than 60 days;
. significant adverse changes in business, financial and economic conditions in which the borrower operates;
. actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower;

The criteria used to determine whether there is a significant increase in credit risk are monitored and reviewed
periodically.
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19. Financial instruments (continued)

The company considers a financial instrument as being in default and exposed to a credit loss (migration from phase
1 or phase 2 to phase 3) when one or more of the following quantitative or qualitative criteria are met:

. the borrower is past due by more than 90 days;
. the borrower experiences significant financial difficulties;
. the borrower is in an insolvency / liquidation procedure.

Calculation of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are calculated by discounting the resulting value of the product of: the probability of default
(PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD), determined as follows:

. PD the probability of that the borrower would fail to perform its financial obligation either in the next 12 months
or for the entire lifetime of the financial asset;

. EAD is the amount due by the company at the time of default;

. LGD is the expectation of the company for the amount of the loss in case of exposure at default. The LGD
amount has been reduced by the insured portion of the financial asset.

The discount rate used to calculate the expected credit loss (ECL) is the instrument’s original effective interest rate.

When determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD for the instrument, forecast information has been
employed as well. The company's management has conducted an historical analysis and has identified the main
economic variables affecting credit risk and expected credit losses.

The expected credit losses on certain loans classified in Phase 1 are determined on the basis of expected credit losses
resulting from possible default events which could occur within the next 12 months of the lifetime of the relevant
asset (12-month expected credit losses for the instrument).

Analysis of expected losses by loans granted:

Probability

Loan of non- Lossinthe Expected Discounted

granted at Interest performance event of non- credit amount of

In BGN’000 31.12.2018r rate in% performance losses the credit loss

Gradus-1 EOOD 19 400 1.3% 0.02% 19 400 4) 4)

Gradus-3 AD 20000 1.3% 0.02% 20 000 4) 4)
Millennium 2000

EOOD 5000 1.3% 0.02% 5000 1) 1)

Lora-2004 EOOD 11 000 1.3% 0.02% 11 000 (2) (2)

Total 55 400 55 400 (12) (11

Currency risk
At the moment, this risk is immaterial for the Company has no transactions in currencies other than the Bulgarian lev.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is reflected in the adverse situation of the Company not being able to meet unconditionally all of its
liabilities as they fall due. The Company applies conservative liquidity management policy through which it constantly
maintains optimal cash levels. The company does not experience a shortage of cash.
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19. Financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk

The company did not hold interest-bearing financial liabilities at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.
Fair values

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm's length transaction. The policy of the company is to disclose in its financial statements the fair value
of financial assets and liabilities, primarily for which there are quoted market prices. The fair value of financial
instruments not traded on active markets is determined using valuation techniques based on various valuation methods
and management’s assumptions made on the basis of market conditions prevailing at the balance sheet date. The
concept of fair value implies the realization of financial instruments through sale. In most cases, especially in respect
of trade receivables and payables, loans and deposits, the Company expects to realize these financial assets through
their full repayment or, respectively, repayment over time. That is why they are stated at their amortised cost. The
Company’s financial assets and liabilities are mainly short-term in nature (trade receivables and payables, short-term
loans) and therefore, it is assumed that their carrying amount approximates their fair value. The Company's
management considers that, under the existing circumstances, the estimates of financial assets and liabilities included
on the balance sheet are the most reliable, adequate and trustworthy as possible for the purposes of financial reporting.

The fair value of financial instruments is determined in accordance with the valuation methodology corresponding to
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Fair values compared to carrying amounts
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with their carrying amounts included on the statement of
financial position are as follows:

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
In BGN’000 Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Related party receivables 9081 9081 - -
Receivables on loans to related parties 55 389 55 389 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 3145 3145 240 240
Total assets at amortised cost 67 615 67 615

240 240
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20. Segment reporting

The Company identified one operating segment — management of companies as at 31 December 2018.

Segment revenue, expenses and results comprise:

Management Management Total 2018 Total 2017
of companies of companies
2018 2017
Segment revenue 27 175 - 27 175 -
Segment expenses (803) (1) (803) (1)
Segment result: 26 372 1) 26372 1)
Undistributed operating expenses (22) -
Operating profit / (loss) 26 350 (1)
Finance income, net 298 -
Profit before income taxes 26 648 (D)
Income tax expense 53 -
Net profit for the year 26 701 (D)
Segment assets comprise:
Management Management Total 2018 Total 2017
of companies of companies
2018 2017
Investments in subsidiaries 264 960 264 960 264 960 264 960
Receivables on loans to related parties 55 389 - 55 389 -
Dividends receivable 9081 - 9081 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3145 240 3145 240
Segment assets 332575 265 200 332575 265 200
Undistributed assets 56 -
Total assets 332 631 265 200
Segment liabilities comprise:
Management Management Total 2018 Total 2017
of companies of companies
2018 2017
Payable to personnel and for social
security 31 - 31 -
Segment liabilities 31 - 31 -
Undistributed liabilities 4
Total liabilities 35
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21. Related party transactions

Identification of related parties

For the purposes of preparing these financial statements, the owners, the companies under their control, the senior
management (key management staff) and close family members, including companies controlled by them, are treated

as related parties.

Related parties:

Relation

Luka Angelov Angelov
Ivan Angelov Angelov
Gradus-1 EOOD
Gradus-3 AD
Millennium 2000 EOOD
Gradus-98 AD
Zhyuliv EOOD
Lora-2004 EOOD
Energy-2  OOD
Gradus-2 OOD)
Agro Invest-7 OOD (former
Gradus-7 OOD)

Mirena OOD

Gold Agro-2005 OOD
Ayazmo AD

Marieta EOOD

Trade Home EOOD

Wolf OOD

Biser Oliva AD

SP Gradus-lvan Angelov-55
Equity Invest-1 AD

Equity Invest-2 OOD

M.O. Stara Zagora OOD

Biser Distribution OOD
Zagora Oil OOD

Auto Spa Center

Zagora Oil OOD

(former

Equity owner

Equity owner

Company under common control

Company under common control

Company under common control

Company under common control

Company under common control

Company under common control

Relationship through a person exercising significant influence

Relationship through a person exercising significant influence

Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence
Relationship through a person exercising significant influence

Transactions with key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and Board members amounts to BGN 339 thousand (2017: BGN 0).

Loans to related parties:

In BGN’000

Gradus-1 EOOD
Gradus-3 AD
Millennium 2000 EOOD
Lora-2004 EOOD
Total:

Loan
granted at
31.12.2017

Loan

Interest granted at
rate Maturity Collateral 31.12.2018
1.3% 07-08.2019 No 19 396
1.3% 07-09.2019 No 19 996
1.3% 07.2019 No 4999
1.3% 07.2019 No 10998
55 389
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

21. Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions between Gradus AD and its related companies as at 31 December 2018:

Total
, . receivables
In BGN’000 Type of transaction Transaction 31 December
value for 2018 2018

Related parties of Gradus AD
Gradus-1 EOOD Loans granted 19 400 19 400
Gradus-1 EOOD Interest accrued 104 -
Gradus-3 AD Loans granted 21 500 20 000
Gradus-3 AD Interest accrued 111 -
Millennium 2000 EOOD Loans granted 5000 5000
Millennium 2000 EOOD Interest accrued 29 -
Lora-2004 EOOD Loans granted 11 000 11 000
Lora-2004 EOOD Interest accrued 65 -
Provision for expected credit losses (11)
Total receivables on loans granted 55 389
Gradus-1 EOOD Dividends 2 500 1000
Millennium 2000 EOOD Dividends 11331 5731
Lora-2004 EOOD Dividends 350 350
Gradus-98 AD Dividends 9494 2 000
Zhyuliv EOOD Dividends 3500 -
Total dividends receivable 9081
Total related party receivables 64 470

22. Events after the reporting date

There were no significant events occurring after 31 December 2018 that require additional adjustments and / or
disclosures in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DECLARATION

in accordance to Article 100n, Para 4, ltem 4 of the Public Offering of Securities Act

The undersigned,

Ivan Angelov Angelov — Executive Director of Gradus AD
Luka Angelov Angelov — Chairman of the Board of Directors
and

Antoaneta Nikiforova Boeva — Chief Accountant of Gradus AD

DECLARE HEREBY, that to the best of our knowledge:

(a) The financial statements prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards give a
true and fair view of the assets and liabilities, financial performance, and of the profit or loss of Gradus AD;

(b) The management report contains a true and fair view of the development and operating
performance of Gradus AD, as well as of the status of the issuer and the consolidated companies, together with a
description of the main risks and uncertainties faced by the company.

29 March 2019

A. Boeva I. Angelov
/Chief Accountant/ /Executive Director/
L. Angelov

/Chairman of the Board of Directors/



DECLARATION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 100m, PARAGRAPH 8 OF POSA

1. Information whether the issuer complies as appropriate:

e Corporate Governance Code approved by the Deputy Chairperson of the Financial
Supervision Commission, or

o Another Corporate Governance Code;

o Information regarding the corporate governance practices, which are applied by
Gradus AD in addition to the code under Letter "a" or Letter "b";

Gradus AD complies with the National Corporate Governance Code /NCMC/ elaborated in
October 2007 and approved by the National Corporate Governance Committee, as subsequently
amended in February 2012 and April 2016. It was approved by the Deputy Chairperson of the
Financial Supervision Commission.

The basis for corporate governance is the interaction between the Board of Directors of the
company, the management bodies of subsidiaries, shareholders, potential investors and trading
partners.

Good corporate governance means loyal and responsible corporate management bodies,
transparency and independence, as well as the responsibility of the company to society.

The code should be applied on the basis of the “comply or explain” principle. This means that
the company complies with the Code and, in the event of a deviation, the management should clarify
the reasons thereof.

According to the Company, the adoption and implementation of a “Program for
Implementation of Internationally Recognised Good Corporate Governance Standards” will facilitate
investment decisions by shareholders and enhance the confidence of potential investors, given the
Company's willingness to improve and optimise the information disclosure processes.

Considering the Program, the main goals of the company are:

e introduction and implementation by the company of good corporate governance
principles;

e facilitating and supporting communication, and raising the level of awareness of the
company’s shareholders, regulatory authorities, financial media and analysts;

e improving the information disclosure processes of the company, including the quality and
relevance of information;

¢ enhancing the confidence of shareholders, investors and any other interested parties in the
management of the company and its development;



2. Explanation by the issuer as to which parts of the corporate governance code under
Item 1, Letter "a" or Letter ""b" the issuer does not comply with and as to what the
ground for this non-compliance are, and when the issuer has opted not to refer to any of
the rules of the corporate governance code - the grounds for that:

While performing its activity, the company complies with all sections of the National
Corporate Governance Code.

3. Description of the main characteristics of the internal control system and of the risk
management system of the issuer in connection with the financial reporting process:

The internal financial reporting and accounting control system of Gradus AD is developed on
the basis of good reporting and control practices in the country and in compliance with the legislative
framework. For the purpose of maximum improvement, it is subject to continuous monitoring by the
management and represents a set of rules, procedures and control actions, which are developed
according to the specific features of the Company, its activity and reporting system. It is directed
towards:

* ongoing monitoring and distribution of reporting activities against their objectives;
* adequate and timely localisation of identified business risks affecting financial,
management and operational reporting.

Using the system, the management is able to assure itself that:
o the Company applies the requirements of the accounting and reporting legislation, and in
particular, the requirements of the Accounting Act and International Financial Reporting
Standards;
« the Company observes the instructions and recommendations of senior management with
regard to reporting and documentation;
« the necessary efficiency and efficiency in the financial and accounting process exist,
including consolidation and documentary justification;
» there is a high degree of security for the protection and maintenance of the assets of the
company, including prevention of fraud and errors;
« there is reliable, qualitative and timely financial and operational information to be
provided to internal and external users.

The main components of the internal financial reporting control system are:

1) adoption and observance of ethical principles and rules of conduct adopted by the Ethics
Code of Conduct of the employees of Gradus AD and with regard to financial reporting;

2) development of and setting an optimal structure of units involved in financial reporting
processes with clearly defined responsibilities and powers;

3) implementation and maintenance of control procedures and rules for each stage of
accounting and financial reporting processes;

4) development of policies for selecting, training and developing staff employed in
accounting and financial reporting processes;

5) development of procedures for identifying, monitoring and managing risks relating to
accounting, financial reporting and reporting, including development of adequate measures
and actions to minimise those risks;



6) development of and maintaining the information system organisation, including access
controls, commissioning, data processing, system changes, allocation of responsibilities of
persons employed to operate it, and preserving of data integrity in the system.

4. Information under Article 10, Paragraph 1, Letters "'c", "d", "f", "h" and "'i'" of
Directive 2004/25/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004
regarding take-over offers:

4.1. Significant direct and indirect shareholdings (including indirect shareholdings
through pyramid structures and cross-shareholdings) within the meaning of Article 85 of
Directive 2001/34/EC

No proposals for takeover and/or merger with another company were made to the Company as
of 31 December 2018.

4.2. Holders of any securities with special control rights and a description of those rights

There are no shareholders enjoying special control rights in the Company. Pursuant to the
Acrticles of Association of Gradus AD, all shares issued by the Company are of one class, ordinary,
registered, dematerialised. All shares give the right to one vote at the General Meeting of
Shareholders, right to dividend and right to liquidation share proportionate to the share’s nominal
value.

4.3. Restrictions on voting rights, such as limitations of the voting rights of holders of a
given percentage or number of votes, deadlines for exercising voting rights, or systems whereby,
with the company’s cooperation, the financial rights attaching to securities are separated from
the holding of securities

There are no restrictions on the voting rights attached to shares.

4.4. Rules governing the appointment and replacement of board members and the
amendment of the articles of association

According to the applicable legal framework and Articles of Association of Gradus AD, the
election and discharge of the members of the Board of Directors, as well as the determination of their
remuneration and the guarantee of their management, are part of the competence of the General
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company is elected and exercises its powers in accordance with
the decisions of the General Meeting, the Articles of Association of the Company, and the applicable
law. The term of office of the members of the Board of Directors is five (five) years, without
limitation of re-election. Upon termination of the term of office of a member of the Board of
Directors, regardless of the grounds therefor, he/she shall continue to perform his/her functions and
duties as a member of the Board of Directors until the election of a new member by the General
Meeting.

4.5. Powers of board members, and in particular, the power to issue or buy back shares
According to the Articles of Association of Gradus AD, the Company's Board of Directors

decides on all matters relating to the activities of the Company, with the exception of those which are
of exclusive competence of the General Meeting.



The Company is managed and represented by the Board of Directors in accordance with the

law and the Company’s Articles of Association. The Board of Directors of the Company takes
decisions on the following:

v

v
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organizes the implementation of the decisions taken at the General Meeting and controls this
implementation;

elects the Executive Director / representative(s), defines the limits of his / her / their
competence and controls his / her / their activity;

decides on long-term cooperation essential to the Company or terminates such cooperation;
takes decisions on the establishing and / or closing a branch;

takes decisions to increase the Company's capital, in cases where it is expressly authorized to
do so by the General Meeting;

approves disposition (including, but not limited to, transfer, encumbrance, burden, etc.) to the
Company's business or parts thereof;

approves the conclusion of transactions with shareholders, members of the Board of Directors
or employees of the Company (or members of their families);

approves borrowing or otherwise forming a Company's financial debt to a third party at a
value above BGN 50,000 as a result of a single transaction or a series of transactions;

decides on the participation and / or termination of the Company's participation in other
companies in the Republic of Bulgaria and abroad;

decides to exercise rights as a shareholder / partner in subsidiaries;

decides to grant a loan or other form of financing the companies in which the Company owns
and / or exercises control;

decides to dispose of intellectual property of the Company as well as to grant intellectual
property rights on assets of the Company;

prepares, accepts and signs a prospectus for public offering of securities issued by the
Company;

elects and releases investment intermediaries to take and/or administer a securities issue
issued by the Company, which will be subject to public offering;

approves the conclusion of transactions other than those specified in Art.114, para.l of the
Public Offering of Securities Act (POSA) with the participation of interested persons within
the meaning of Art.114, para.7 of POSA,;

approves the conclusion of transactions under Art.114, para.3 of the POSA by the subsidiaries
of the Company,

resolves on all matters that are not within the exclusive competence of a General Meeting.

5. Composition and functioning of the administrative, managerial and supervisory
bodies and their committees

Members of the Board of Directors at the date of preparation of this report are:

e Luka Angelov Angelov — Chairman of the Board of Directors
¢ Ivan Angelov Angelov — Member of the Board of Directors and Executive Director
e Georgi Aleksandrov Babev - Member of the Board of Directors

The company is represented by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Luka Angelov, and by

Ivan Angelov, Member of the Board of Directors and Executive Director, jointly.

The company has a one-tier management system.

Management bodies of Gradus AD:

e General Meeting of Shareholders



e Board of Directors



General Meeting, Participation in a General Meeting

e The General Meeting comprises all shareholders with voting rights.

e The shareholders with voting rights are able to exercise their vote at a General
Meeting of the company by a proxy;

e The members of the Board of Directors who are not shareholders participate in the
General Meetings without a right to vote.

Competence of the General Meeting:

e Amends and supplements the Articles of Association of the Company;

e Increases and decreases the capital of the Company;

e Transforms and terminates the Company;

e Elects and dismisses the members of the Board of Directors;

e Determines the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors, to whom
corporate governance functions will not be entrusted, including their right to receive a
portion of the Company’s profit, as well as the right to acquire shares and bonds of the
Company;

e Appoints and dismisses registered auditors, when the audit is mandatory in the cases
provided for in a law or when a decision has been taken that an independent financial
audit shall be carried out;

e Approves the annual financial statements after they have been certified by the
appointed registered auditor in the cases where an independent financial audit has
been carried out; takes a decision for profit distribution, for making contributions to
the Reserve Fund and for payment of dividends;

e Resolves on the issuance of bonds;

e Appoints liquidators in the event of termination of the Company, except for the case
of termination by bankruptcy;

e Releases from liability the members of the Board of Directors;

e Resolves on redemption of treasury shares of the Company;

e Elects an Audit Committee; determines the number and mandate of its members and
approves its Rules of Procedure in compliance with the provisions of the Independent
Financial Audit Act;

e Empowers the persons managing and representing the Company to conclude deals
under Article 114, paragraph 1 of POSA;

e Resolves on all other matters within its competence according to the law and/or the
Avrticles of Association.

Board of Directors:

e The Board of Directors manages and represents the company;

e The Board of Directors exercises its powers in compliance with the decisions of the
General Meeting, these Articles of Association and the applicable law.



Competence of the Board of Directors:

o Organises the implementation of the decisions taken at the General Meeting and
control this implementation;

e Elects the Executive Director(s)/representative(s), determines the limits of his/their
competence and controls his/their activity;

e Takes decisions on long-term cooperation essential to the Company on the
termination of such cooperation;

e Takes decisions on the establishment and/or closure of a branch;

e Takes decisions to increase the capital of the Company, in cases where it is expressly
authorized to do so by a General Meeting;

e Approves the disposal (including, but not limited to, transfer, closure, burdening, etc.)
of the Company's business or parts thereof;

e Approves the conclusion of transactions with Shareholders, members of the Board of
Directors or employees of the Company (or members of their families);

e Approves the taking of a loan or otherwise forming a Company's financial debt to a
third party at a value exceeding BGN 50,000 as a result of a single transaction or a series of
transactions;

o Takes decisions on the participation and/or termination of the Company's
participation in other companies in the Republic of Bulgaria and abroad;

e Takes decisions on the exercise of rights of the Company as a shareholder/partner in
subsidiaries;

e Takes decisions on granting a loan or other form of financing to companies in which
the Company has equity participation and /or on which it exercises controls;

e Takes decisions on disposal of Intellectual Property Rights of the Company, as well
as on granting rights to objects of Intellectual Property of Company;

o  Prepares, accepts and signs a prospectus for public offering of securities issued by the
Company;

e Selects and releases investment intermediaries which to take over and/or administer
the issue of securities issued by the Company, which will be subject to public offering;

e After obtaining a public status from the Company, it shall approve the conclusion of
transactions other than those specified in Art.114, para.l of the Public Offering of Securities Act with
the participation of interested persons within the meaning of Art.114, para.7 of POSA,

e After obtaining a public status from the Company, it shall approve the conclusion of
transactions under Art.114, para.3 of POSA by the subsidiaries of the Company;

e Resolves all matters which are not within the exclusive competence of the General
Meeting.

Remuneration

The amount and structure of remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors are
regulated by the Articles of Association of Gradus AD, approved by the General Meeting of the
company, their management contracts, and the Remuneration Policy of the Board of Directors,
adopted by minutes dated 01 August 2018. The latter shall be approved by the GMS of the company.

Conflict of interest

The company has implemented a related party transactions policy, approved by minutes of the
Board of Directors dated 01 August 2018.



Supervisory bodies

The company has a one-tier management system and thus, an Audit Committee has been
established in accordance with Article 1070of the Independent Financial Audit Act.

The Audit Committee consists of 3 (three) members elected by the Board of Directors for a 4
(four)-year mandate. Two of the members of the Audit Committee, including its Chairperson, should
be independent.

Members of the Audit Committee are:

¢ Radka Dincheva Peneva — Chair of the Audit Committee;
e Petya Radoslavova Panova — Member of the Audit Committee;
e Georgi Aleksandrov Babev — Member of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee of Gradus AD is a specialised body entrusted with the following
powers:

o Informs the Board of Directors of the results of the statutory audit and clarifies how
the statutory audit has contributed to the credibility of financial reporting, and the role of the Audit
Committee in this process;

o monitors the financial reporting and audit processes, internal control and risk
management of the company, and provides recommendations and proposals to ensure their efficiency;
e monitors the statutory audit of the company's annual financial statements;

e inspects and monitors the independence of the registered auditors of the Company;

e is responsible for the registered auditor selection procedure and recommends the
appointment of a registered auditor;

e perform other functions provided for by law.

6. Description of the diversity policy applied as regards the administrative, managerial
and supervisory bodies of the issuer in connection with aspects such as age, gender or
education and professional experience, the objectives of such diversity policy, its method
of application and the results therefrom during the reporting period; when no such
policy is applied, the declaration shall contain an explanation regarding the reasons for
that:

Gradus AD makes every effort to ensure equal opportunities for recruitment and respect in
form and substance of the whole range of laws relating to fair practices in the working environment
and the prevention of discrimination.

Discrimination and harassment, whether based on race, gender, feeling or expression of sex,
colour of the skin, belief, religion, national origin, nationality, citizenship, age, disability, family status
(including partnerships without marriage and civil alliances, defined and recognised by the current
legislation), sexual orientation, culture, pedigree, veteran status, socio-economic situation or other
law-protected personal characteristics are unacceptable and totally incompatible with the traditions of
the Company, for ensuring a reputable, professional and decent job. Repressive measures to persons
raising complaints about discrimination or harassment are also prohibited.

The main goals of the Company in implementing diversity policies include:



* attracting, hiring and retaining at work of people possessing a wide range of talents.
The diverse abilities and talent of managers and employees open up new opportunities for
innovative and creative solutions, increase creativity and innovation. This in turn would
also lead to a more effective adaptation to the impact of globalisation and technological
change. A more diverse workforce can improve the ability of the Company to achieve its
objectives. This approach can raise the spirit of employees, give access to new market
segments and increase productivity;

» promoting a working atmosphere that respects ethical diversity and in which
differences between people are valued and respected,;

» solving one of the most important problems for the employer — that of labour
shortages, as well as problems relating to the recruitment and retention of highly skilled
workers;

» improving the reputation and overall representation of the company vis-a-vis external
stakeholders and society;

 creating opportunities for disadvantaged groups and building the unity of society.

Gradus AD aims to achieve the goals set by promoting and implementing in practice the types
of diversity that are of importance to the Company. By adopting good practices applied by other
companies and institutions, the Company's management aims at making diversity management a
functioning part of the Company. Gradus AD devotes its efforts to inform its employees, consumers,
customers and investors of the importance of diversity for them and their work, aiming to build trust
willingness to render support.

29 March 2018

Executive Director

Ivan Angelov

Chairman of Board of Directors:

Luka Angelov
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF GRADUS AD

REPORT ON THE RESULTS FROM THE AUDIT OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the separate financial statements of GRADUS AD (the Company), which comprise
the separate statement of financial position as of 31 December 2018, and the separate statement
of comprehensive income, separate statement of changes in equity and separate statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notfes to the separate financial statements comprising also a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the enclosed separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as of 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
adopted for use by the European Union (EU).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in our report, Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the separate financial statements section. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants of the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and have otherwise fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the requirements of the Independent Financial Audit Act (IFAA) applicable to
our audit of the separate financial statements in Bulgaria, and we complied also with our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requirements of IFAA and IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

ADVISORY + ASSURANCE - TAX

Baker Tilly Klitou and Partners OOD trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which
are separate and independent legal entities.
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Draw of attention paragraph

We draw attention to Note 2 to the separate financial statements, where it has been disclosed that
at the date of these separate financial statements the consolidated financial statements of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended have not yet been issued.
Management intends to issue the consolidated financial statements of the Company for 2018 not
later than 30 April 2019. Our opinion is not modified in this regard.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial report of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, but
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

Description of how our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Assessment of investments

The Company holds investments in subsidiaries
amounting to BGN 264,960 thousand, included
in Note 5 to the separate financial statements.

The review of the indicators and
management’s tests of the need of impairment
of the investments in these subsidiaries is a
complicated process that requires
management to apply significant assumptions,
various judgments and estimates in respect of
the future return on investments; for the
purpose of measuring the recoverable amount,
the discounted cash flow method is employed.
The latter are determined individually for each
subsidiary and it is freated as a separate cash
generation unit (CGU) by taking into account
factors, such as: specifics of the activity and
location, business environment, past
experience with that entity, expected growth in
sales volumes during the next reporting periods,
appropriate discount rate, other risks, etc.
Therefore, in general these management’s
estimates are subject to uncertainty.

The calculations have been made by
management  with  the  assistance  of
independent licensed valuers - experts

external to the Company.
In view of the fact that:

In this areq, our audit procedures included:

e Review and assessment of the analyses
of investments in each one of the
subsidiaries, conducted by the
Company, and its potential of
generating a return by applying the
discounted cash flow method;

e Analyses and assessment of the
appropriateness of the budgets and
forecasts prepared by the Company as
at 31 December 2018;

e Analyses and assessment of the
adequacy of key judgements and
assumptions used by the Company's
management, including of the discount
rate by applying the discounted cash
flow method;

e Review and assessment of the
completeness, appropriateness and
adequacy of the disclosures made in
the separate financial statements of the
Company regarding the assessment of
the investments in subsidiaries.
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a) the process of determination and testing
possible impairment losses of investments in
subsidiaries presume numerous judgements, a
higher level of subjectivity and uncertainty in
forecast assumptions, including forecast
revenue, forecast cash flows and growth rate,
and

b) the substance of the reporting item as
described above,

we have determined this matter as a key audit
matter.

Information other than the separate financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. That other information comprises the
management report and Corporate Governance Statement prepared by management in
accordance with Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act, but does not include the separate
financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the separate financial statements does not cover this other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion regarding this other information, unless expressly stated
otherwise in our report and fo the extent stated.

In connection with our audit of the separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and consider whether the information is materially inconsistent with our knowledge
obtained in the audit or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we, based on the work performed concerning this information, conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the separate financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRS, as approved by the EU, and for such internal conftrol
system as management deftermines is necessary fo enable the preparation of separate financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, management is responsible for the assessment of the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. They disclose, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless management intends to
liguidate the company, to cease its operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the separate financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Independent Standards on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the separate financial statements represent the underlying
fransactions and events in a manner that achieves frue and fair presentation.

We communicafe with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Among the matters we communicate with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the separate financial statements of the current
period and therefore, are key audit matters. We describe those matters in our auditor’s report, except
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in the cases when a law or regulation prevents the public disclosure of information on the matter or
when, in extremely rare cases, we decide that a particular matter shall not be communicated in our
report as it can be reasonably expected that the unfavourable consequences of this act would
outweigh the potential benefits from the point of view of the public interest from this communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Other matters to be reported in accordance with the Accountancy Act and the Public Offering of
Securities Act

In addition to our responsibilities and reporting in accordance with ISAs, described above in the
Information other than the separate financial statements and auditor’s report thereon section, in
relation to the management report, the Corporate Governance Statement and Non-financial
Statement, we have also performed the procedures added to those required under ISAs in
accordance with the the Guidance of the professional organisation of certified public accounts and
registered auditors in Bulgaria - Institute of Certified Public Accountants (ICPA). These procedures
concern verifications of the existence, as also of the form and contents of this other information, in
order to support us in the formation of an opinion as to whether this other information includes
disclosures and reporting stipulated in Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act and in the Public
Offering of Securities Act (Article 100n, paragraph 10 of POSA with reference to Article 100n,
paragraph 8, items 3 and 4 of POSA), applicable in Bulgaria.

Opinion with reference to article 37, paragraph é of the Accountancy Act

Based on the procedures performed, our opinion is that:

a) The information included in the management report is consistent with the separate financial
statements for the same reporting period;

b) The management report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act and Article 100n, paragraph 7 of the Public Offering
of Securities Act;

c) The Corporate Governance Statement referring to the financial year for which the separate
financial statements have been prepared presents the information required under Chapter
Seven of the Accountancy Act and Art. 100n, paragraph 10 of the Public Offering of Securities
Act;

d) Pursuant to the provisions of Article 41 of the Accountancy Act, the Company has not
prepared a separate Non-financial Statement for the financial year, for which the separate
financial statements have been prepared.

Opinion with reference to Article100n, paragraph 10 in conjunction with Article 100n, paragraph 8,
items 3 and 4 of the Public Offering of Securities Act

Based on the procedures performed and the knowledge and understanding obtained about entity’s
activities and the environment in which it operates, in our opinion, the description of the main
characteristics of entity’s infernal control and risk management systems relevant to the financial
reporting process, which is part of the management report (as a component of the corporate
governance statement) and the information under Art. 10 paragraph 1(c), (d). (f), (h) and (i) of
Directive 2004/25/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on Takeover
Bids, do not contain any material misrepresentations.



@ pakertilly

Additional reporting regarding the audit of the separate financial statements with reference to Article
100n, paragraph 4, T. 3 of the Public Offering of Securities Act

Statement with reference to Article 100n, paragraph 4, item 3, letter ,,b" of the Public Offering of
Securities Act

Information on related party tfransactions is disclosed in Note 21 to the separate financial statements.
Based on the audit procedures performed by us with respect to related party transactions as part of
our audit of the separate financial statements as a whole, there are not any facts, circumstances or
other information, which have come to our notice, on the basis of which to make the conclusion that
the related party fransactions have not been disclosed, in all material respects, in the notes to the
separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. The results of our audit procedures on the related
party transactions have been considered by us in the context of the formation of our opinion on the
separate financial statements as a whole, and not for the purpose of expression of a separate opinion
on the related party transactions.

Statement with reference to Article 100n, paragraph 4, item 3, letter “c* of the Public Offering of
Securities Act

Our responsibilities to audit the separate financial statements as a whole, as described in the section
of our report fitled Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Separate Financial Statements,
include evaluation whether the separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves true and fair presentation. Based on the audit procedures
performed by us with respect to the underlying transactions and events for the separate financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, there are not any facts, circumstances or other
information, which have come to our notice, on the basis of which to make the conclusion that there
are cases of material misrepresentation and unfair disclosure in accordance with the applicable
requirements of IFRS, adopted by the European Union. The results of our audit procedures on the
underlying transactions and events for the separate financial statements of the Company have been
considered by us in the context of the formation of our opinion on the separate financial statements
as a whole, and not for the purpose of expression of a separate opinion on these underlying
fransactions.

Reporting in accordance with Arlicle 10 of Regulation (EU) 537/2014 with reference to the
requirements of Article 59 of the Independent Financial Audit Act

Pursuant to the requirements of the Independent Financial Audit Act with reference to Article 10 of
Regulation (EU) 537/2014, we report also on the information described below:

- Baker Tilly Klitou & Partners OOD was appointed as a statutory auditor of the separate
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 by the General
Meeting of Shareholders held on 11 May 2018 for a period of one year.

- The audit of the separate financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018 is the second full confinuous statutory audit engagement of this entity
performed by Baker Tilly Klitou & Partners OOD.
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- We confirm that the audit opinion expressed by us corresponds to the additional report
presented to the Audit Committee of the Company in accordance with the requirements of
Article 60 of the Independent Financial Audit Act.

- We confirm that we have not provided prohibited services other than audif, enumerated in
Article 64 of the Independent Financial Audit Act.

- We confirm that, when carrying out our audit, we have continued to be independent to the
Company.

- For the period covered by our statutory audit, besides the audit services we have not
provided any ofher services to the Company.

Krasimira Radeva
Registered Auditor
Managing Director

Baker Tilly Klitou & Partners OOD
Sofia, 5, Stara Planina Street, floor 5
29 March 2019
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|. Introduction

The first successful full year of the existence of GRADUS AD passed. The group companies achieved very strong
results in both years 2017 and 2018, and allocated a significant proportion of the profit generated as dividends to the
Company. The cumulative dividend amounts to BGN 27,174,730. The Board of Directors intends to propose to the
GMS in 2019 a distribution of BGN 24,360,871, or BGN 0.10 per share as gross dividend.

1. Registration and object of activity

GRADUS AD (the ,,Company”) is a company registered in Bulgaria with the Commercial Register of the Registry
Agency under UIC: 204882907 on 28 November 2017.

The Company is a parent entity.

Its existence is not limited by time.

Management address:
Stara Zagora 6000, Industrialen quarter, Gradus Poultry Slaughterhouse

On 30 July 2018, by decision N 770 — I1[, of 30 July 2018, the Financial Supervision Commission registered
GRADUS AD as a public company with the Public Companies and Other Issuers of Securities Register, kept by the
Financial Supervision Commission, pursuant to Article 30, paragraph 1, item 3 of the Financial Supervision
Commission Act.

The company shares are admitted to trading on the BSE Main Market, Standard Segment. Stock Exchange Code
GR6.

OBJECT OF ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

The object of activity of the Company is: Investments in stocks and shares of companies, acquisition and
management of shares in Bulgarian and foreign companies; activity as a holding company; acquisition, assessment
and sale of patents, concession of licenses for the use of patents of companies, in which the Company has shares;
financing of companies, in which the Company has shares, as well as any other activity not prohibited by law,
provided that if a permit or a license is required, or registration for the purpose of carrying out any activity, then
such activity shall take place following the obtaining of such permit or license, respectively following the
completion of such registration.

1.1. Share capital

The registered capital of the company amounts to BGN 243,609 thousand split into 243,608,710 shares with
nominal amount of BGN 1 (one) each.

The shares of GRADUS AD are ordinary, registered, dematerialized voting shares.

Shareholding structure of the Company as at 31 December 2018
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1.2. Board of Directors
Gradus AD has a one-tier management system - Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors consists of three (3) members who are as follows as at 31 December 2018:

e Luka Angelov Angelov — Chairman of the Board of Directors of Gradus AD
e Ivan Angelov Angelov — Member of the Board of Directors and Executive Director of Gradus AD
e Georgi Aleksandrov Babev - Member of the Board of Directors of Gradus AD

Participation of the members of the Board of Directors in commercial companies as general partners, holding of
more than 25 percent of the capital of another entity, as well as participation in governing bodies of other companies
or cooperatives as procurators, general managers or board members:

Luka Angelov Angelov

1.1. As an unlimited liability partner - No

1.2. Owns directly more than 25% of the capital of:

"Equity Invest-1" AD (UIC 204750154), "Equity Invest-2" OOD (UIC 204746138), "Energy-2" OOD (UIC
123655788), "Agro Invest-7" OOD (UIC 123654743) "Mirena" OOD (UIC 123655806), "Gold Agro-2005" OOD
(UIC 119642703), "Wolf" OOD (UIC 123760892), "Marieta" EOOD (UIC 123655770), "Bisser Distribution" OOD
(UIC 200090633), "Gradus" AD (UIC 204882907)

and indirectly through "Gradus™ AD:

"Zhyuliv' EOOD (UIC 119053781), "Millennium 2000" EOOD (UIC 119591422), "Gradus-98" EAD (UIC
123120561), "Gradus-1" EOOD (UIC 822132592), "Lora-2004" EOOD (UIC 123658624), "Gradus-3" AD (UIC
123152751)

and indirectly through "Marieta" EOOD in "Trade Home" EOOD (UIC 123644254).

1.3. Participates in the governing bodies of:

"Equity Invest-1" AD (UIC 204750154), " Equity Invest-2" OOD (UIC 204746138), "Zhyuliv' EOOD (UIC
119053781), "Millennium 2000" EOOD (UIC 119591422), "Gradus-98" AD (UIC 123120561), "Energy-2" OOD
(UIC 123655788), "Agro Invest-7" OOD (UIC 123654743), "Gradus-1" EOOD (UIC 822132592), "Mirena" OOD
(UIC 123655806), "Lora-2004" EOOD (UIC 123658624), "Gold Agro-2005 "OOD (UIC 119642703), "Graudus-3
"AD (UIC 123152751), "Wolf* OOD (UIC 123760892), "Marieta" EOOD (UIC 123655770) , "Bisser Oliva" AD
(UIC 123036597).

lvan Angelov Angelov

1.1. As an unlimited liability partner - ET "Gradus-lIvan Angelov-55" (UIC 112038433)

1.2. Owns directly more than 25% of the capital of:

"Equity Invest-1" AD (UIC 204750154), "Equity Invest -2" OOD (UIC 204746138), "Energy-2" OOD (UIC
123655788), "Agro Invest-7" OOD (UIC 123654743) "Mirena" OOD (UIC 123655806), "Gold Agro-2005" OOD
(UIC 119642703), "Wolf" OOD (UIC 123760892), "Gradus" AD (UIC 204882907), "Zagora Oil" OOD (UIC
202473858)



and indirectly through "Gradus" AD:

"Zhyuliv* EOOD (UIC 119053781), "Millennium 2000" EOOD (UIC 119591422), "Gradus -98" EAD (UIC
123120561), "Gradus-1" EOOD (UIC 822132592), "Lora-2004" EOOD (UIC 123658624), "Gradus-3" AD (UIC
123152751).

1.3. Participates in the governing bodies of:

"Equity Invest-1" AD (UIC 204750154), "Equity Invest-2" Ltd. (UIC 204746138), "Zhyuliv" EOOD (UIC
119053781), "Millennium 2000" EOOD (UIC 119591422), "Gradus -98" AD UIC 123120561), "Energy-2" OOD
(UIC 123655788), "Agro Invest-7" OOD (UIC 123654743), "Gradus-1" EOOD (UIC 822132592), "Mirena" OOD
(UIC 123655806), "Lora-2004" OOD (UIC 123658624), "Gold Agro-2005" OOD (UIC 119642703), "Wolf" OOD
(UIC 123760892).

Georgi Alexandrov Babev

1.1. As an unlimited liability partner - No

1.2. Owns directly more than 25% of the capital of: LG Auto OOD (UIC 205395076)
1.3. Participates in the governing bodies of:

LG Auto OOD (UIC 205395076)

1.3. Audit Committee
Members of the Audit Committee are:

e Radka Dincheva Peneva — Chair of the Audit Committee;
e Petya Radoslavova Panova — Member of the Audit Committee;
e Georgi Aleksandrov Babev — Member of the Audit Committee.

I1. An objective review of the development and operating performance of the Company, as well as its status,
together with a description of the main risks faced by it

2. Indicators characterizing the operating performance

Being a holding company, Gradus AD carries out no independent commercial activity. The Company’s activity is
focused on management of subsidiaries and allocating financial resources among them.

Group subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018:

% share
Lora-2004 EOOD effective shareholding 100.00
Zhyuliv EOOD effective shareholding 100.00
Millenium 2000 EOOD effective shareholding 100.00
Gradus-1 EOOD effective shareholding 100.00
Gradus-3 AD effective shareholding through Gradus-1 EOOD 96.00
Gradus-98 AD effective shareholding 99.94

The main object of activity of the group of Gradus AD is concentrated in Poultry-farming Sector, except for the
companies with object of activity ,,manufacture of and trading in compound feeding stuff.

At present, there are no trends and events that have a significant impact on the company's future activity and
operating performance.

2.1. Operating results

The net profit of the Company for the period 01 January 2018 — 31 December 2018 amounts to BGN 26,701
thousand (for the period 28 November 2017 — 31 December 2017 - a loss of BGN 1,000)

The results of the Company reported in its financial statements depend directly on the performance of its
subsidiaries.



e Revenue and expenses cannot be compared with those in the previous financial reporting period as
Gradus AD has been established and functioning since 28 November 2017.

e For the first time the Company will be able to effectively compare revenue and expenses in its
financial statements for the first quarter of 2019.

e On an annual basis, for the first time the Company will be able to effectively compare revenue and
expenses only in its 2019 annual financial statements.

2.1.1. Income of the Company:

2018 28.11.2017- _
INCOME in BGN’000 31.12.2017 Relative share %
in BGN’000
Operating income
Dividend income 27 175 - 98.88%
Finance income
Interest income 309 - 1.12%
Total 27 484 - 100%

e The main income, which has the greatest impact on the current financial result of the Company, originates
from distribution of dividends by the subsidiaries, which are as a result of their commercial activity carried

out in previous years.

Dividend income by companies:

Dividend amount 28.11.2017-
Subsidiary distributed 31.12.2017 | Relative share %
in BGN’000 in BGN’000
Millennium 2000 EOOD 11331 - 41.70%
Gradus-98 Al 9494 - 34.94%
Zhyuliv EOOD 3500 - 12.88%
Gradus-1 EOOD 2500 - 9.20%
Lora-2004 EOOD 350 - 1.29%
Total 27 175 - 100.00%
e Interest income relate to loans granted to subsidiaries.
Terms and conditions of loans to subsidiaries:
Agreed Balance as at Incl
Subsidiary Currency principal Maturity Interest % 31 December interest.
BGN’000 2018.
,,Gradus-3“ AD BGN 12000 | 17.07.2019 1.3% 11998 -
BGN 1000 | 02.08.2019 1.3% - -
BGN 5000 | 27.08.2019 1.3% 4999 -
BGN 3000 | 03.09.2019 1.3% 2999 -
BGN 500 | 17.09.2019 1.3% - -
,,Gradus-1“ EOOD BGN 12000 | 17.07.2019 1.3% 11998 -
BGN 1000 | 05.08.2019 1.3% 1000 -
BGN 1000 | 14.08.2019 1.3% 1000 -




BGN 5400 | 27.08.2019 1.3% 5398
Millennium 2000 EOOD BGN 5000 | 17.07.2019 1.3% 4999
Lora-2004 EOOD BGN 11000 | 17.07.2019 1.3% 10998
Total amount 56 900 55 389

The loans granted to subsidiaries are current. The purpose of the loans is to support the development of existing and
new business lines, as described in the Public Offering of Securities Prospectus and to finance their operational
activity.

2.1.2. Expenses of the Company:

Operating expenses:

EXPENSES 2018 2:?111122201177 Relative share %
Operating expenses
Expenses by nature
Expenses on materials 1 - 0.12%
Hired service expenses 404 1 48.97%
Depreciation / amortization expenses 1 - 0.12%
Expenses on wages and social security payments 386 - 46.79%
Other expenses 22 - 2.67%
Impairment of assets 11 - 1.33%
Total: 825 1
Finance costs
Bank charges 11 -
Total: 11 -
Total operating expenses 836 1 100%

During the reporting period, the hired service expenses held the highest share of costs.
A detailed breakdown of expenditure can be found in the Notes to the financial statement.

2.2. Risk factors for the activity
At present, management of Gradus AD is not aware of any specific trends and events, which would directly
influence the Company's future activity.

The Company’s risk management policy is designed to identify and analyse the risks, to which the Company is
exposed with the purpose of establishing limits of undertaking a risk. Based on the analysis made of those risks, the
Company develops and introduces respective controls, through which to ensure control on those risks. This policy,
as well as the implemented risk management controls are subject to periodic inspection for the purpose of reflecting
any changes made to the external and internal conditions, under which the Company operates.

Credit risk

Credit risk exists if a loss is generated when a counterparty to a financial instrument is not able to meet its
obligations under a contractual term.

The exposure to a credit risk depends on the individual characteristics of each customer. The Company measure the
credit risk of loans to related parties using internal valuations that reflect the probability of default. In 2018, the
Company granted loans only to related parties — subsidiaries, which reduces the credit risk to a minimum.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will have difficulties in fulfilling its obligations related to financial
liabilities. The liquidity management approach of the Company aims at ensuring, as far as possible, that there will
always be sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations, both under normal and stressful conditions, and without
incurring unacceptable losses or harming the reputation of the Company.







Market risk

Market risk is the risk that in case of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates or
prices of equity instruments, the Company’s income or the value of its investments may be affected. At present, this
risk is immaterial.

Financial risk management
The overall capital management goal of the Company is to ensure its ability to continue as a going concern and to

ensure adequate return to its shareholders.
There were no changes in the capital management goals, policies or processes in the period ending 31 December

2018.

I11. Analysis of financial and non-financial key performance indicators related to business activity, including
information on environmental and personnel-related matters

3. Key financial indicators

Aiming at achieving greater efficiency and control on the Company's performance, management monitors certain
key performance indicators. These indicators are mainly directed towards the amount of profit, the debt level and
efficiency.

Main indicators related to profit, which the Company monitors, are as follows:

e EBITDA margin (EBITDA/sales)

2018
EBITDA (earnings before interest,
- S 26 351
taxes, depreciation and amortisation)
Revenue 27 175
EBITDA margin 96.97%
EFFECTIVENESS
e  Costs effectiveness ratio (total expenses /total income)
2018
Total expenses 836
Total income 27 484
Costs effectiveness 0.03
o Revenue effectiveness ratio (total income /total expenses)
2018r.
Total income 27 484
Total expenses 836
Revenue effectiveness 32.88

The analysis of the revenue and costs effectiveness for 2018 reveals that revenue covers fully the company's
expenses and thus, the company is able to meet the dividend commitments undertaken and to finance the companies
included in the Group's portfolio.
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The Company had no financial liabilities a sat 31 December 2018. The Company timely pays its current liabilities.

3.1. Non-financial Statement

Gradus AD is a holding company and does not carry out its own production and trading activity, nor it produces or
markets its own goods or services. The company's activities are focused on management of subsidiaries and
distribution of finance resources among them.

Being a parent entity in a large Group, the Company will include also a consolidated Non-financial Statement in its
consolidated management report.

3.2. Personnel

The average number of staff of Gradus AD at 2018 year-end is 2 employees hired under employment agreements.
All employees of the Company have a higher education degree and qualification that is in conformity with the post
occupied.

During the reporting period, the company did not hire temporary workers.

Posts within the Company as at 31 December 2018:

e Investors Relations Director
e  Chief Accountant

The Company provides additional qualification possibilities to improve the professional qualification of its
employees.

IV. Important events, which have occurred after the date of preparation of the annual financial statements

The Company’s management is not aware of any important and significant events, which have occurred after 31
December 2018 that would have an impact on the financial statements.

V. Future perspectives of the company

By Minutes of GMS of 29 December 2017, the Board of Directors was empowered to take a decision to increase the
Company’s capital up to BGN 100,000,000 (one hundred million Bulgarian leva) through the issuance of new
shares under the terms and conditions of public offering in compliance with the effective legislation over a term of
up to 2 (two) years.

In 2018, the Company registered with the Commercial Register at the Registry Agency an increase of the capital of
BGN 22,608,710 (twenty-two million, six hundred and eight thousand, seven hundred and ten) new shares in the
amount of BGN 40,695,678 (forty million, six hundred and ninety-five thousand, six hundred and seventy-eight
Bulgarian leva).

V1. Research and development activities
The Company was not involved in research and development activities in 2018.

VII. Information on the acquisition of treasury shares required by Article 187e of the Commercial Act
Treasury shares were not acquired during the reporting period.

VI11. Branches of the Company
The Company has no branches.
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IX. Financial instruments used by the Company

Financial instruments used by the Company as at 31 December 2018:

Financial assets at amortised cost 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
In BGN’000

Related party receivables 9081 -
Receivables on loans to related parties 55 389 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3145 240
Total 67 615 240

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments entered into force on 01 January 2018 by replacing 1AS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. In this respect, at the end of the reporting period the Company’s management
decided to write down the receivables on loans granted.

Parameters affecting the amount of expected credit losses are defined collectively or individually depending on the
type and nature of the financial instruments concerned.

For further details on the write down of receivables on loans granted and financial instruments, see the accounting
policies and notes to the financial statements.

X. Additional information pursuant to Appendix 10 of Ordinance 2 of FSC

1. Information given in value or quantitative terms about the main categories of commodities, products
and/or provided services, with indication of their share in the revenues from sales of the Company as a whole
and the changes that occurred during the reporting fiscal year.

Being a holding company, Gradus AD carries out no independent commercial activity and has finance income and
dividend income only.

2. Information about the revenue allocated by separate categories of activities, domestic and external
markets as well as information about the sources for supply of materials required for the manufacture of
commodities or the provision of services with indication of the degree of dependence in relation to any
individual seller or buyer/user, where if the share of any of them exceeds 10 per cent of the expenses or
revenue from sales, information shall be provided about every person separately about such person’s share
in the sales or purchases and his relations with the Company;

Being a holding company, Gradus AD carries out no independent commercial activity and has finance income and
dividend income only.

3. Information about concluded large transactions and such of significant importance to the issuer’s activity
Large transactions and such of significant importance to the activity of Gradus AD were not concluded in 2018.

4. Information about the transactions concluded between the Company and related parties during the
reporting period, proposals for conclusion of such transactions as well as transactions which are outside its
usual activity or substantially deviate from the market conditions, to which the Company or its subsidiary is
a party, indicating the amount of the transactions, the nature of relatedness and any information necessary
for an estimate of the influence over the issuer’s financial status;

Large transactions of significant importance to the activity of Gradus AD were not concluded in 2018, with the
exception of loans to subsidiaries, as disclosed in the Notes to the separate financial statements. There are no
transactions falling beyond the issuer’s normal activity or such concluded not at arm’s length.

5. Information about events and indicators of unusual for the Company nature, having substantial influence
over its operation and the realized by its revenue and expenses made; assessment of their influence over the
results during the current year;

There were no events and indicators of unusual nature, having substantial influence over the issuer’s operations.
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6. Information about off-balance sheet transactions — nature and business objective, indication of the
financial impact of the transactions on the operation, if the risk and benefits of these transactions are
substantial for the assessment of the Company’s financial status;

There were no such transactions.

7. Information about holdings of the Company, about its main investments in the country and abroad (in
securities, financial instruments, intangible assets and real estate), as well as the investments in equity
securities outside its economic group and the sources/ways of financing;

Investments of Gradus AD are in shares of subsidiaries.
The Company owns no real estate.

Information on share participation of Gradus AD is disclosed in the Management Report to the separate financial
statements, Section Il. An objective review of the development and operating performance of the Company, as
well as its status, together with a description of the main risks faced by it.

8. Information about the concluded by the Company, by its subsidiary or parent undertaking, in their
capacity of borrowers, loan contracts with indication of the terms and conditions thereof, including the
deadlines for repayment as well as information on the provided guarantees and assuming of liabilities

At 31 December 2018, Gradus AD had no loan payables and was not a party to guarantees provided and
liabilities assumed.

9. Information about the concluded by the Company, by its subsidiary or the parent undertaking, in their
capacity of lenders, loan contracts, including the provision of guarantees of any type, including to related
persons, with indication of the concrete conditions there under, including the deadlines for repayment and
the purpose for which they have been granted

- Currency Agr_eed . Balance at incl

Subsidiary principal | Maturity Interest 31.12.2018 interesf
BGN’000 % T

,Gradus-3“ AD BGN 12000 | 17.07.2019 1.3% 11998 -

BGN 1000 | 02.08.2019 1.3% - -

BGN 5000 | 27.08.2019 1.3% 4999 -

BGN 3000 | 03.09.2019 1.3% 2999 -

BGN 500 | 17.09.2019 1.3% - -

,,Gradus-1“ EOOD BGN 12000 | 17.07.2019 1.3% 11998 -

BGN 1000 | 05.08.2019 1.3% 1000 -

BGN 1000 | 14.08.2019 1.3% 1000 -

BGN 5400 | 27.08.2019 1.3% 5398 -

] lnnium 2000 BGN 5000 | 17.07.2019 | 1.3% 4999 .

,,Lora-2004 EOOD BGN 11000 | 17.07.2019 1.3% 10998 -

Total amount 56 900 55 389 -

The purpose of short-term loans provided is to support the development of existing and new business lines, as
described in the Prospectus for Public Offering of Securities, and to finance the operations of subsidiaries.

10. Information on the use of the funds accumulated through a new issue of securities over the reporting
period

Gradus AD used the funds accumulated by extending loans to its subsidiaries in accordance with the company
policy and the Articles of Association of the Company.

11. Analysis of the ratio between the achieved financial results reflected in the financial statement for the
fiscal year, and previously published forecasts for these results
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This a newly incorporated company and there are no forecasts for the respective period.

12. Analysis and assessment of the financial resource management policy with indication of the possibilities
for servicing of the liabilities, eventual risks and measures which the issuer has undertaken or is to undertake
with a view to their removal

The policy of Gradus AD is directed primarily to management of the entities included in its portfolio. Free cash is
used to finance the companies’ operations. At 31 December 2018, the company used no loan funds.

13. Assessment of the possibilities for realization of investment intentions with indication of the amount of
available funds, as also of any changes in the financing structure of this activity

The activity of Gradus AD is directed primarily to management of its current investments. New investments are not
foreseen by the company. The focus of Gradus AD is on developing the entities included in its portfolio.

14. Information about occurred during the reporting period changes in the base principles for management
of the issuer and its economic group.

Gradus AD manages its investments by setting high but achievable objectives in terms of quality, productivity and
profitability. Particular attention is paid to environmental protection, human resources development and corporate
social responsibility. There were no changes over the reporting period to the basic principles of management of
Gradus AD and its economic group.

15. Information about the main characteristics of the applied by the issuer in the course of preparation of the
financial statements internal controls system and risk management system.

Aiming at ensuring an independent and objective assessment of financial statements, the annual audit of Gradus AD
is carried out by an independent auditor. All financial statements are drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards. The current financial and accounting activity of the company is subject to periodic
control and analysis by the management body. The company has implemented a well-established practice for
periodic discussion of the current financial performance of the companies included in its strategic investment
portfolio with a view to ensuring the implementation of their business programmes and a precise analysis of the
possibilities for the implementation of future investment projects.

16. Information on changes in the management and supervisory bodies during the reporting fiscal year.
There were no changes in the management and supervisory bodies.

17. Information on the amount of the remuneration, rewards and/or the benefits of each member of the
management and control bodies for the fiscal year under review, paid by the Company and its subsidiaries,
irrespective of whether they have been included in the Company’s expenses or arise from profit distribution,
including:
e a) amounts received and in-kind benefits;
e b) conditional or postponed remuneration over the year, even if the remuneration is due at a later
point in time;
e ) amount due by the issuer or its subsidiaries for payment of pensions, retirement benefits or other
similar compensation

Information is provided in a separate Report on the Implementation of the Members of the Board of Directors
Remuneration Policy.

18. Information about shares of the Company owned by the members of the management and of the control
bodies, procurators and the senior management, including shares held by anyone of them separately or as a
percent from the shares of each class, as well as provided to them options on securities of the Company by the
latter — type and amount of the securities over which the options have been set up, price of exercising of the
options, purchase price, if any, and term of the options.

Shares held at 31 December 2018 by the members of the Board of Directors:

Name, father’s name, family name Number of shares %
Ivan Angelov 99 195 645 40.72%
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Luka Angelov 99 195 645 40.72%
Georgi Aleksandrov Babev 0 0
19. Information about agreements known to the Company (including also after the fiscal year closing) as a
result of which changes may occur at a future time in the owned percent of shares or bonds by current
shareholders and bondholder.

No such agreements are known.

20. Information about pending court, administrative or arbitration proceedings relating to issuer’s liabilities
or receivables of an amount of at least 10 percent of its equity

Gradus AD is not a party to pending court, administrative or arbitration proceedings, nor there are any decisions
taken or claims to terminate the activity of the company and announce it in liquidation.

21. Contact information of the Investor Relations Director, including telephone number and correspondence
address

Boryana Dimitrova
0883 773 993

ir@gradusbg.com
Sofia, 110B Simeonovsko Shosse Boulevard, floor 4, office 22

XI. Additional information pursuant to Appendix 11 of Ordinance 2 of FSC

1. Structure of the Company’s capital including the securities that have not been admitted to trading on a
regulated market in the Republic of Bulgaria or another Member State, with indication of the different
classes of shares, the rights and liabilities attaching to any of the classes of shares and the portion of the total
capital which each individual class constitutes.

The share capital of GRADUS AD as at 31 December 2018 amounts to BGN 243,608,710 (two hundred forty-three
million, six hundred and eight thousand, seven hundred and ten Bulgarian leva) split into 243,608,710 (two hundred
forty-three million, six hundred and eight thousand, seven hundred and ten) ordinary registered dematerialized
voting shares with nominal amount of BGN 1 each in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The subscribed capital of the Company was paid fully and registered with the Commercial Register at the Registry
Agency.

All shares give the right to one vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders, right to dividend and liquidation share
proportionate to the share’s nominal value.

The company shares are admitted to trading on the BSE Main Market, Standard Segment.
The stock exchange code is GR®.
The capital structure of GRADUS AD as at 31 December 2018:

e Individuals — 1,147: 205,473,832 shares, 84.35%
o Legal entities - 79 : 38,134,878 shares, 15.65%

Trading in shares of GRADUS AD on BSE AD during the period 06 August 2018 — 31 December 2018
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GR6: 06.08.2018 - 28.12.2018 - aHeeHa rpadwuka

| 28.12.2018 Ors: 1.71 Mwn: 1.69 Makc: 1.71 3ate: 1.71

11.84
{1.82
{1.80
11.78
11.76
11.74
{1.72
{1.70
1168
11.66
{1.64
{162
11.60
{1.58
@ infostock.bg 1428
06em (noToss): 3.796K 159
{3000k,
{2000k,
{1000k,
6ABr 13 20 27 3Cen 10 17 24 10kt & 15 22 1Hoe ©& 15 2z  30ex 10 17 24 R
LleHoea cTtatmcTika Ot 06.08.2018 Jo 31.12.2018
Mocnenqa uexa MpomAHa [MpoMAHa NPOLEHTH QOGem (nega) Mocnegqa coenka
1.705 nB.. +0.145 ~1.84% 6 689 626 28 Nlekemepy 2018 16:54
e abcomoTHa croiHoct | B npoueHTH
W3meHeHHe cnpAMo
) — SEDETE HauanHa MuHMmanHa MakcumanHa CpegHa MocnegHa
HauanHa 1850 06.08.2018 - 22333% 0.00% 2T.50% 2850%
MuHMManHa 1500 27.11.2018 - 18.92% - - 15.92% ~12.84% +12.02%
MakciManHa 1850 06.08.201% 0.00% 223.33% - aT.50% 28.50%
CpegHa 1.721 - «5.97% 2a1473% »5.97% - 20.94%
MocnegHa 1706 28122018 - 7.84% a13.67% - 7.845% +0.93% -
McTopMyeck gaHHM
Meceuqo
Nata OTeapAHe  MuH. Makc. 3aTeapAHe A A% Obemi{noTa) Obem(neea)
1272018 1.620 1.560 1720 1.705 2 0,105 a 6.56 % 3026759 5180 449
1172018 1.685 1.500 1.705 1.600 - 0.080 - 4.76 % 181 411 280 683
1072018 1770 1.630 1770 1.680 - 0.080 - 5.08 % 918627 155 615
09/2018 1.760 1.730 1.795 1.770 a 0.020 a114% 66 131 117 092
08/2018 1.850 1.705 1.850 1.750 - 0.100 - 541 % 521539 945 786

2. Limitations over the securities transfer, such as limitations for holding of securities or a requirement to

obtain approval of the Company or another shareholder.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of shares, such as restrictions on the holding of shares or a need to obtain

the approval of the Company or other shareholder.
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The transactions with registered dematerialised shares of the Company may be concluded on the securities regulated
markets only through investment brokers, as well as by other ways provided for in a law.

The transfer of registered dematerialised shares issued by the Company has an effect from the moment of
registration of the transaction with the Register kept by the Central Depository certifying the right to these shares.
Registered dematerialised shares of the Company are transferred in compliance with the requirements of the
effective legislation.

3. Information on the direct and indirect holding of 5 or more percent of the voting rights in the Company’s
General Meeting of Shareholders, including information about the shareholders, the amount of their holding
and the manner of holding the shares.

Shareholders of GRADUS AD as at 31 December 2018 holding of 5 or more percent of the voting rights in the
Company’s General Meeting of Shareholders:

Number of shares Manner of
Shareholders held as at 31 % holding the
December 2018 shares
1| Ivan Angelov Angelov individual 99,195,645 | 40.72 personal
2 | Luka Angelov Angelov Individual 99,195,645 | 40.72 personal
3| Doverie Pension Insurance Company legal entity 12,225,000 5.02 indirectly
4| Other legal entities /77 legal entities / legal entities 25,909,878 | 10.63 personal
5| Individual shareholders /1,145 individuals / individuals 7,082,542 291 personal
TOTAL 243,608,710 | 100.00

4. Information about the shareholders with special control rights and description of these rights
The Articles of Association of GRADUS AD does not envisage special control rights.

5. The control system in exercising the voting right in cases when officials of the company are also its
shareholders and when the control is not exercised directly by them.

A control system is not envisaged. Every employee who is also a shareholder is able to vote freely as he/she wishes
and at his/her own discretion.

6. Limitations over the voting rights, such as limitations over the voting rights of the shareholders with a
given percent or number of votes, deadline for exercising the voting rights or systems whereby with the
company’s assistance, the financial rights attaching to the shares are separated from the holding of shares.

There are no restrictions on the voting rights of the company shareholders, regardless of the number of shares held,
nor are there any restrictions as to the deadline for exercising the voting rights.

A voting right may be exercised by persons registered as holders of voting shares with the Register kept by the
Central Depository 14 (fourteen) days before the date of convening the General Meeting.

Shareholders participate in the General Meeting in person or through a proxy authorised expressly by an explicit
power of attorney in compliance with the requirements of POSA.

7. Agreements among the shareholders, which are known to the company and which may result in limitations
over the transfer of shares or the voting right.

The company is not aware of any agreements among the shareholders, which may result in limitations over the
transfer of shares and/or the voting rights.

8. Provisions regulating the appointment and dismissal of the members of the company’s management bodies
and about introduction of amendments and supplements to the articles of association.

The General Meeting of Shareholders:

1. amends and supplements the Articles of Association of the Company;
2. increases and decreases the capital of the Company;
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3. transforms and terminates the Company;

4. elects and dismisses the members of the Board of Directors;

5. determines the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors, to whom corporate governance
functions will not be entrusted, including their right to receive a portion of the Company’s profit, as well as the right
to acquire shares and bonds of the Company;

6. appoints and dismisses registered auditors, when the audit is mandatory in the cases provided for in a
law or when a decision has been taken that an independent financial audit shall be carried out;

7. approves the annual financial statements after they have been certified by the appointed registered
auditor in the cases where an independent financial audit has been carried out; takes a decision for profit
distribution, for making contributions to the Reserve Fund and for payment of dividends;

8. resolves on the issuance of bonds;

9. appoints liquidators in the event of termination of the Company, except for the case of termination by
bankruptcy;

10. releases from liability the members of the Board of Directors;

11. resolves on redemption of treasury shares of the Company;

12. elects an Audit Committee; determines the number and mandate of its members and approves its Rules
of Procedure in compliance with the provisions of the Independent Financial Audit Act;

13. empowers the persons managing and representing the Company to conclude deals under Article 114,
paragraph 1 of POSA;

14. resolves on all other matters within its competence according to the law and/or the Articles of
Association.

Majority required to pass decisions

Decisions of the General Meeting shall be adopted by a majority of 50% plus one share of all voting shares issued,
unless a higher majority is provided for in the law or in the Company’s Articles of Association. The decisions
referred to in points 1, 2, 3 and 12 shall require a majority of 2/3 of all voting shares issued.

The decision referred to in point 14 requires a majority of 3/4 of the capital represented in the event of acquisition
or disposal of assets, and in all other cases, 50% plus one share of the capital represented.

9. Powers of the company’s management bodies, including the right to take decisions for the issue and
redemption of shares in the company.

The powers of the Board of Directors are stipulated in the Articles of Association of the Company.

10. Significant contracts of the company which give rise to action, have been amended or terminated due to
change in the control of the company upon carrying out of obligatory tender offer and the consequences
thereof, save for the cases when the disclosure of such information may cause serious damages to the
company; the exception of the previous sentence shall not apply in the cases when the company must disclose
information by virtue of the law.

There are no such contracts.

11. Agreements between the company and its management bodies or officials for payment of compensation
upon quitting or dismissal without legal grounds or upon termination of the labour relations due to reasons,
related to a tender offer

There are no such agreements, nor any such agreement are envisaged.

29 March 2019

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
/lvan Angelov/

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
/Luka Angelov/
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REPORT P ———l
ON THE WAY OF APPLICATION OF THE REMUNERATION
POLICY FOR THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
GRADUS AD FOR 2018

This Report has been prepared in accordance with Article 12, paragraph 1 of Ordinance No 48
dated 20 March 2013, issued by the Financial Supervision Commission, and Article 3, paragraph
1 of the 2013 Remuneration Policy for the members of the Board of Directors of Gradus AD,
elaborated by the Board of Directors

The Report presents the way of application of the Remuneration Policy for the members of the
Board of Directors and the Executive Director, the main goal of which is to establish principles and
rules for determining and paying their remuneration in carrying out their duties.

I. Information about the way of application of the Remuneration Policy for the period from its
approval to the 2018 year-end

1. Information about the decision-making process concerning the Remuneration Policy,
including, if applicable, information about the mandate and composition of the
Remuneration Committee, the name of external consultants, whose services have been used
in determining the Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy for the members of the Board of Directors has been elaborated in
accordance with the requirements of Ordinance No 48 and also takes into account the recommendations
of the National Corporate Governance Code.

Pursuant to the effective Remuneration Policy for the members of the Board of Directors, they
have not set up a Remuneration Committee. The services of external consultants have not been used in

the elaboration of the Remuneration Policy.

2. Information about the weight of the variable and fixed remuneration of the members of the
managing and control bodies

The company may pay the members of the Board of Directors both permanent (fixed) and
variable remuneration.

The remuneration and tantiemmes of the members of the Board of Directors shall be determined
by decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders and shall be paid in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the management contracts concluded between them and the Company.

At the time of adoption of this Policy, the members of the Board of Directors are paid only
fixed remuneration.
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3. Information about the assessment criteria, on the basis of which share options, company
shares or other types of variable remuneration are granted; and explanation on how the
criteria under Article 14, paragraphs 2 and 3 contribute to the achievement of the long-term
goals of the Company

No remuneration was paid to the members of the Board of Directors in the form of company
shares, share options or rights to acquire shares.

4. Explanation of the method applied and assessment whether the criteria reflecting the
results achieved have been met

According to the Remuneration Policy, the members of the Board of Directors are entitled to
receive additional variable remuneration in case of a positive financial result (objectives achieved) for
the previous year.

5. Explanation of the interrelation between the remuneration and the results achieved

Variable remuneration, if voted on, depends on the achievement of certain objectives and is
linked to the following criteria:

1. Financial indicators, namely operating results, as follows:

1.1. amount and dynamics of EBITDA (the earnings of the company and its subsidiaries before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation);

1.2. amount and dynamics of the sales of the subsidiaries;

1.3. amount and dynamics of the receivables of the subsidiaries.

2. Non-financial indicators, as follows:

1.1. compliance with the principles of the National Corporate Governance Code;

1.2. implementation of observance of the approved Code of Ethical Conduct and other internal
rules and policies of the Company.

6. Basic payments and reasons underlying the annual scheme for payment of bonuses and/or
other non-monetary consideration

The remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors shall be paid on a monthly basis to
a bank account up to the 25" day following the month for which it is due.

Bonuses and other non-cash supplementary remuneration were not paid to the members of the
Board of Directors in 2018.
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7. Description of the key features of the additional voluntary pension insurance plan and
information about contributions paid and/or due by the company in favour of a director for
the respective financial year, where applicable

Additional voluntary pension insurance is not envisaged for the members of the Board of
Directors.

8. Information about the period of deferral of variable remuneration

The payment of 40% of the variable remuneration defined in the decision of the General
Meeting of Shareholders shall be deferred for a period of 3 years, and the payment of the deferred part
of the variable remuneration shall be effected proportionally during the period of deferral.

9. Information about the compensation policy to an early termination of a contract
The contract with a member of the Board of Directors shall regulate the terms and conditions,
and the maximum amount of benefits in case of its early termination, as well as payments relating to

the period of notice or provided for in the clause prohibiting the pursuit of a competitive activity.

Upon early termination of the contract, compensation is paid corresponding to the amount of
the unused paid annual leave and the unpaid remuneration in an amount set in the contract.

Benefits from the Company shall not be due if the termination of the contract is due to
unsatisfactory results and/or guilty behaviour of a member of the Board of Directors.

10. Information about the period in which shares cannot be transferred and share options
cannot be exercised in the case of share-based variable remuneration

No such period is set.

11. Information about the policy for preserving a certain number of shares until the end of the
mandate of the members of the managing and control bodies after the expiry of the period
under item 10
No such a policy is pursued by the Company.

12. Information about the contracts of the members of the managing and control bodies,

including the term of each contract, the term of the notice of termination and details about
the compensations and/or other payments due in case of early termination
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The contract with each member of the Board of Directors was concluded by the end of the term
of office for which he/she was elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders. During the reporting
financial year, the company has no contract terminated with a member of the Board of Directors.

13. Full amount of the remuneration and other incentives paid to the members of the managing
and control bodies for the respective financial year

The full remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors for the financial year 2018
amounts to BGN 324,000.00. Remuneration is current and no other incentives or deferred remuneration
have been paid.

14. Information about the remuneration of each individual who has been a member of a
managing or control body of a public company for a certain period of time during the
respective financial year

Not applicable to the reporting financial year.

15. Information about the shares and/or share options and/or other share-based incentive
schemes

There is no such information
I1. Program on the application of the Remuneration Policy during the subsequent year

The Remuneration Policy aims to support the long-term business goals of the Company and
promote behaviour, which supports the creation of value for the shareholders while ensuring a
competitive remuneration that is sufficient to attract and retain directors with qualities necessary for the
successful management and development of the company.

This Policy has been developed for a long period of time, unless the shareholders of the
company request its update and revision. Amendments to the Policy approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders shall be adopted in accordance with the procedure followed in its preparation and
approval.

The Board of Directors believes that the principles for determining remuneration at present,
underlying this Policy, are effective in view of the financial results achieved during the reporting period.
Their implementation will continue to be a priority of the Board of Directors.
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The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the timely disclosure of the Remuneration
Policy approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders and any subsequent amendments thereto.

29 March 2019

Executive Director:

Ivan Angelov

Chairman of Board of Directors:

Luka Angelov



Remuneration policy of the members of the Board of Directors of Gradus AD

I Basic Principles

Art. 1./1/ This Policy, as well as any amendments thereto, are developed by the Board of
Directors of "Gradus" AD (the "Company") and are approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

/2/ The policy aims to establish the principles and rules for determining and paying the
remuneration of the members of the company's board of directors in the performance of their
duties.

/3/ The size and structure of the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors shall
be determined by the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.

Art. 2. / 1 / The policy aims to establish objective criteria for determining the remuneration of
the corporate management of the Company with a view to attracting and retaining qualified
and loyal members of the Board of Directors and motivating them to work in the interest of the
Company and the shareholders by avoiding potential and real conflict of interest.

/ 2 / The Company applies the Policy in accordance with the statutory requirements for public
companies, the objectives, the long-term interests and the strategy for future development of
the Company as well as its financial and economic situation.

/ 3 / This Remuneration Policy is adopted on the basis of Art. 116c, para. 1 of the Public Offering
of Securities Act.

1. Disclosure of Information about the Policy
Art. 3./ 1/ The Company shall disclose the Policy and any subsequent changes thereto in a clear
and accessible way without disclosing commercially sensitive information or other information
constituting a legally protected secret by publishing it on the Company's website www.gradus.bg
/ 2 / The Company discloses to its shareholders how it implements the remuneration policy in a
report that is a stand-alone document to the annual financial statement a report of the
Company and also published on its website: www.gradus.bg
/ 3 / The report under para. 2 contains a program for the implementation of the remuneration
policy for the following financial year or for a longer period, a review of how the remuneration
policy has been applied during the year / period under review and emphasizes the substantial
changes thereto, if such policies exist compared to the previous financial year. The report also
contains the legally required information as it is listed in Article 13 of Ordinance No. 48.
1. Remunerations of the Board of directors



Art. 4. / 1 / The Company may pay to the members of the Board of
Directors both fixed /permanent/ and variable remuneration. At the time of
adoption of this Policy, members of the Board of Directors receive only fixed
remuneration.

/ 2 / The remunerations and tantiems of the members of the Board of Directors shall be
determined by decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

/ 3 / When determining the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors, the
following principles shall be followed:

1. Permanent remuneration is payment that is fixed once, exactly and their formation is
independent of the outcome or performance evaluation of the functions.

2. Variable remuneration, if it is voted, is an element of the total remuneration in the form of
bonuses, additional benefits (eg. related to retirement / tantiemes, material incentives, which
are determined on the basis of performance evaluation.

/ 4 / The variable remuneration, if voted, depends on the achievement of certain objectives and
is subject to the following criteria:

1. Financial indicators, namely the operating results, as follows:

1.1. size and dynamics of EBITDA (profit before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization)
of the company and its subsidiaries;

1.2. size and dynamics of sales of subsidiaries;

1.3. size and dynamics of the receivables of subsidiaries.

2. non-financial indicators as follows:

1.1. observing the principles of the National Corporate Governance Code;

1.2. implementation and observance of the adopted Code of Ethical Conduct and other internal
rules and policies of the company.

Art. 5./ 1/ The total amount of the variable remuneration, if any, is based on a combination of
the performance appraisals of the individual member of the Board of Directors, the Board of
Directors as a whole and the results of the company's activities. In this way, the Board of
Directors shall determine the permanent and variable remuneration of the executive members
of the Board of Directors in their capacity as such.

/ 2 / The payment of 40% of the variable remuneration determined in the decision of the
General Meeting of Shareholders, if voted, is rescheduled for a period of 3 years.

/ 3 / The payment of the deferred portion of the variable remuneration, if voted, is carried out
pro rata during the rescheduling period.

Art. 6/1 / The contract with a member of the Board of Directors regulates the conditions and
the maximum amount of the benefits in case of its early termination, as well as payments



related to the term of the notice or provided in the clause prohibiting the
conduct of a competitive activity.

/ 2 / The compensation for early termination of the contract shall be set at an
amount corresponding to the unpaid paid annual leave and the unpaid remuneration under
Art. 5 of the contract.

Art. 7./1/ The relations between the company and the Executive Director are governed by a
contract for the assignment of the management, which is concluded under the terms of the
Commercial Law.

(2) If a variable remuneration is being voted, the contract with the Executive Director must
include provisions that allow the company to demand the return of a variable remuneration
provided on the basis of data which subsequently proved to be untrue. The decision to return
the variable remuneration is taken by the general meeting of shareholders, which determines
the term and terms of the bond if they are not defined in the contract.

(3) The contract with the Executive Director shall lay down the conditions and the maximum
amount of benefits in case of its early termination, as well as payments related to the term of
the notice or stipulated in the clause prohibiting the conduct of a competitive activity. The
compensation for early termination of the contract is set at the amount of the fixed
remuneration paid for the last 4 (four) months.

Art. 8/1 / The General Meeting of Shareholders may provide variable remuneration in the form
of shares, share options, share acquisition rights or other financial instruments.

/ 2 / The specific conditions and parameters of the remuneration under para. 1 shall be
determined by decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders on a case-by-case basis, subject
to the provisions of the law.

IV. Final provisions

1. The Board of Directors of the Company shall be responsible for the implementation of the
Policy and, at least once a year, shall review it in respect of the remuneration of the members
of the Board of Directors and the Executive Director of the Company.

2. The present policy was adopted by the Board of Directors of Gradus AD on 01.08.2018.

3. This Policy is to be adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholders of Gradus AD in 2019.



REPORT
for the activity of the Investor Relations Director of Gradus AD
in 2018

This report provides information on the activities of the Investor Relations Director of Gradeus AD
in 2018. The Public Offering of Securities Act gives the Investor Relations Director certain obligations
related to the timely disclosure of information in favor of investors, the regulated market and the
supervisory authorities. The present report is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Public Offering of Securities Act and shall be provided to the shareholders of the company at the Regular
Annual General Meeting. It reflects the activities performed by the Investor Relations Director for the
presentation of the Company's periodic reports and in accordance with the provisions of the Public
Offering of Securities Act.

As a company that gained public status in 2018, Gradus AD is actively working to implement its
investment program. In this respect, the main priority of the Investor Relations Director is to establish
an effective relationship between the Board of Directors of the Company and its shareholders and those
who have expressed an interest in investing in the company's securities. During the past year, investors
and shareholders were active in seeking information about the company's activities. The Director
provided the necessary information regarding the current financial and economic situation of the
company, the stages of realization of the investment plans of the company as well as any other
information to which the persons referred to in the preceding sentence are legally entitled as
shareholders or investors.

In the past 2018 and up to this moment the Investor Relations Director meets regularly questions
from shareholders that for the reporting period are mainly related to:

- The ways of purchase and / or sale of shares of the Company;

- Payment of dividends;

- The results of the company;

- Information on the stages of realization of the investment intentions of the company, as
announced in its Prospectus far Public Offering of Shares;

The Investor Relations Director shall keep and store:

- the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of Gradus AD;

- a journal for the held meetings of the Board of Directors of Gradus AD, in chronological order, the
date, opening hours and closing hours of the meeting, agenda and decisions taken, in a way that does
not allow subsequent amendments or additions to it.

The minutes accurately and faithfully reflect the information about the held meetings of the Board
of Directors, incl. agenda, issues discussed and decisions taken.

The Investor Relations Director is responsible for the timely submission of all necessary reports and
notices to the Financial Supervision Commission, Bulgarian Stock Exchange AD and Central Depository
AD.

In 2018, the Investor Relations Director presented in full and in full time all normative regulated
materials, including events related to the Company's activities, which could have an impact on the price
of the shares, the supervisory body, the stock exchange and the public through the e-register platforms
and x3News, the information is also published on the company's website: www.gradus.bg



&
The functionalities of the company's website were used to enable Ecmeemseno *°

investors to have up-to-date information on the investments made and the results of
the business.

The Investor Relations Director keeps a record of the reports and notifications sent to the
regulators, a register of received requests and materials for general meeting given to shareholders and a
register of received requests and information provided by shareholders and investors.

Despite the fact that in 2018, Gradus AD has not held a General Meeting of Shareholders, the
Investor Relations Director has the obligation to participate actively in the preparation and holding of
the General Meeting of the Shareholders by providing all the written materials on the agenda at the
disposal of the shareholders at the address of the company's management. Upon request, the materials
for a general meeting will be sent to each shareholder. Whenever possible, the shareholders' rights in
the General Meeting will be clarified, including the right to vote in the decision-making process, the right
to include additional issues on the agenda, the right to ask questions to the management of the holding
regardless of whether they are related to the agenda. So far, the main issues of the shareholders of
Gradus JSC related to the General Meeting are related to the place where the regular annual general
meeting of shareholders for 2019 is expected to be held, as well as to the identification documents of
the shareholders of the meeting.

The Investor Relations Director can be contacted through a publicly available electronic address
and telephone, also announced on the website of Gradus AD: https://gradus.bg/contact-investors

The Investor Relations director of Gradus AD is a member of the Association of Investor Relations
Directors in Bulgaria. She participates in seminars, trainings and meetings organized py this association.




EBPOMENCKMHU
POPMAT HA
ABTOBUOIrPA®UA

NW4HA MHOOPMALIUS

Mme
Anpec
TenechoH

E-mail

HaumoxanHoct

[laTa Ha paxnaHe

TPYNOB CTAX

* lat (oT-m0)

* Mime u appec Ha pabotonarens

* Bua Ha peiHocTTa unv chepara Ha
pabota

* 3aeMaHa AmuKHOCT
* OCHOBHM A€AHOCTH M OTFOBOPHOCTY

* flatv (0T-0)
* ime n agpec Ha paBotopatens

* Bua Ha peitHocTTa unu chepara Ha
paboTa

* 3aemaHa ANbKHOCT
* OCHOBHY AIEMHOCTH W OTFOBOPHOCTH

* latv (oT-00)
* VIme 1 aapec Ha paboToparens

* Bua Ha geiHocTTa unu chepata Ha
pabota

* 33eMaHa [TbKHOCT
* OCHOBHI A1BHHOCTY M OTFOBOPHOCTH

OBPA30BAHME 1 OBYYEHUE

* fatu (oT-go)
* VIme 1 Bun Ha obyyasaliara unu
oGpa3oBaTenHara opraHuaauusa

« OCHOBHM NpeAMETH/3aCTBNEHN
npodecroHanHu yMeHus

| eTp.

BABEB, EOPIW, ANEKCAHAPOB

TATRA S~ YK A

PORLSES 1
PRTFIN AL

Bwnrapua

RS RY

01.01.2009-12.10.2016
Mexcuonro Ocuryputento Apywecteo "Anuany Bunrapus” Afl, 6yn. Liap Gopuc IIl, 196
YnpaeneHue Ha akTuan

Mopthonuo MeHumisp

Ynpanerne Ha nopTdiernuTe Ha necoHHnTe doraose Ha NOJ "Anvany Bvnrapus” v Ha
3acTpaxoBaTenHuTe ApYKecTsa oT rpynata Ha AnuaHy buarapus XonguHr, uHeecTMpare Ha
CPEACTBa, ThbProBMA C aKTUBM, YrpaBneHue Ha AenC3UTH, NNaHUPaHe Ha NapyyHIn NOTOLM,
MoCTOSHHa KOMYHMKALMA C BOAELM (DMHHCOBM MHCTUTYLIMM BLB BPL3Ka C 0rOBapAHE Ha
AEN03NTH, MOCPEAHNYECTBO C LIEHHW KHIDKA, BANYTHI U (hOPYLPAHN CLEMKM.

01.07.2007-31.12.2008
MexcronHo OcurypurenHo Jpyxectao "Anuany Bwxnrapus’ Afl, 6yn. Liap Bopwc Ill, 196
ObpaboTka cAenkW ¢ aKkTUeM

Havannuk otaen "Bek-oduc Musectuumm”
OTyeTHOCT Ha IBINKEHUATA CBBPAaHU C ONEPALIMNTE MO CAEMKM C LIEHHIN KHIXKA.

11.09.2006-30.06.2007
MexcuonHo OcuryputenHo [pywectso Anvany Bvrrapus Afl, 6yn. Liap Bopwc IIl, 196
ObpaboTka caenki ¢ akTuem

Creyvanuct "Bek-oduc MHBecTALUM"
OT4eTHOCT Ha ABKKEHUATA CBBP3IAHHU C ONEPALIMATE MO CABNKK C LEHHU KHILKA.

2009-2010
University of Wales Institute Cardiff

Accounting for Decision Makers, Marketing, Research Methods, Strategic Management,
Management of Finance



* Haumenosanue Ha npupoburara
KBanugukauus

* HWBO no HauWoHanHaTa
KnacuuKaLma (ako e NpUnoKUMo)

+ flatv (o7-g0)
* Vime 1 Bug Ha obyyasalara unu
obpaaosatenHaTa opraHu3aLmus

+ OcHoeHM NpegMeTH/3acTLNEHN
NpoeCHOHANHN YMEHUs

* HaumeHosaHue Ha npugobutara
KBanugmukalma

* HYBO NO HaLUWOHanHaTa
KnacucukaLms (ako e NPUNoKMMOo)

= [latu (0T-10)
* Mme u Bup Ha obydasawara unm
obpasosarenHarta opraHusaLmus

* OcHOBHM NpeaMeTI/3acTbneHu
npochecHOHANHA YMEHUA

* HanmeHoBaHwe Ha npuaoburara
keanucukauus

* H1Bo no HauuoHanHata
Knacuukauma (ako e Npunoxmmo)

TIN4HU YMEHUS! U KOMNETEHLMM

BregpseaHe Ha onepaluoHHa
cuctema SAP (CFM Module)

MAWYMH E3MK

[Pyrin E3ULN

* HeTeHe
* [ucarHe
* Pasrosop

CBWAETENCTBO 3A YMPABMEHWE
HA MIMC

2 cTp.

Master of Business Administration
Maruetbp no 6uavec agmmHucT pauns
MarucTep, MBA

2001-2006
University of Portsmouth

Financial Markets & Institutions, Financial Reporting, Intemnational Trade & Trade Policy,
International Financial Management, Business Finance, International Accounting

BA (Hons) Intl Finance and Trade

Bachelor

2011-2012
Bucwe Yunnuwe MexayHapoaeH Konex ,AnGexa’

MexayHapopen MapkeTiur, Mpeanpuemavectso, Teopua Ha noTpeBUTENCKOTO NoBeAEHHUE,
BuaHeckoMmyHukauuy, OpraHuaaupoHHo noseaerme, BusHec VIHopMaumuorHu Cuctemu,
Teproecko npaso, MapkeTnHrou uacnensanus, MapkeTHros MeHUmKMBHT, MapKeTUHrou
KomyHukaumi, OcHoBYW Ha MEXAYHApOAHATa TbproBusi, CTPaTernYEckr MEHWIKMBHT.

MapkeTuHr 1 MeHuaXMBHT

Bakanaeup

2010 - 2012

Y4acTue KaTo KOHCYNTaHT B EKWN, CLCTOALL Ce NET CRYXUTENA OT CTPaHa Ha “AnuaHy Benrapus
XonpuHr', CeBMECTHO C exin oT cTpana Ha SAP Bratislava, 3a BreapsgaHe Ha cuctema SAP
(CFM Module) 3a HywauTe Ha 3acTpaxoBaTenHITe i NEHCHOHHM APYKECTBA OT rpynata Ha
“AnuaHy Benrapua XonawHr'. Paspaboteaxero Ha cucTemara be HanokMTenHo, 3a aa e
NOAXOAALIA 33 HYWAWTE Ha APYXECTBATA U OTHE OKOMO 2-3 rOAMHM, NPes KOeTo Bpeme ce
noAAbpPKalle HenpecTaxHa Bpbaka Mexay meH W IT cneunanucTute oT SAP Bratislava.
BHeapeHara cuctema 6e umnnemenTipaxa n paboTi v 4o AHEC YCNEWHO B APYXECTBATA Ha
‘AnuaHy Brnrapus Xonaunr',

Bbnrapckun

AHTTMACKM E3MK
OtnnyHo
OtnnyHo
OTnudHo

Ja
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- ezabel ET JEZABEL - DJEYLIAN NURI

TRANSLATION OFFICE Hpe&oﬁoma uﬁ K
['ep® na YVuusepcurer [Nopremyr
¢ MOTO Ha AATHHCKH e3HK:

LUCEM - SEQUAMUR:

UNIVERSITY of PORTSMOUTH
(YVHHBEPCHUTET I'TOPTCMYT)

TI'eoprm BabGes

¢ HOKA3AA CAEOHUA Yinex: 1o 8peMe Ha Kypea Ha obyuerine wa Yrusepcumem I lopmeyym
sa npudobusare wa Cmenen “baxasapnbp”’
no “‘Mesxaynapoann @unancu u Tbprosus”

I[IPEOMET KPEAUTH YYEBHU YACOBE QLEHKA (%)

KoauyecTBern Metoau 10 120 40
BbBenenre B UkoHOMHKaTa 10 120 44
Opraunzaunus Ha [loBesgenuero 10 120 60
Busnec Undopmannonun Cucremu 20 240 61
OcnoBu Ha  H3uMcafBaHeTO Ha 10 120 58
CebecroiinocTTa

HombaauTeaeH Kype no UKoHOMHKA 10 120 78
BwBenesyde BBB PHHAHCOBOTO H 20 240 40
YnpaBaeHcko CHETOBOICTBO

Cratucruka 3a busneca 10 120 70
Busnec $PHHaHCH 20 240 45
EaexkTponHa Trproeus 20 240 64
dunancosa OTIYETHOCT 20 240 55
Buauec AHaau3 u [Taanupase 10 120 50
dunancosu [lazapn n1 UHCTUTYILIMH 20 240 54
BnBenerue B MexayuaponHara 10 120 63
TeproBus

AMIHOCTHO %4 ITpohecrHoHaAHO 10 120 60
Kapuepuo PasputHe

Busuec PazButue 10 120

MesR IyHAPOHO PHUHAHCOBO 20 24 n‘?
YupaBacHue ]

286, STAMBOLYSKI BLvD., 1000 SoF1A, BULGA \,ﬁ »é
TeL. /Fax: (++359-2) 981 15 25, MOBILE: (++359-88) 8615 844, E-qrml. JEZAEEL@/QI& G

IS *taiﬁt»‘ 7
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Hgonomuka Ha 3aCTPaXOBaHETO U 10 120 70
MupecTripuTe — 1 HacT

"?npaaneﬁue n  HuadopmaumoHHH 10 120 62
Cucremu

MexayHapoaHo C4eTOBOACTBO 20 240 54
Mexayuaponsa Teproecka INoanTHKA 10 120 60
Duceprarmsa (Junsomua Padora ) 20 240 54
Buznec @HH&IZICH 3a HanpesaHaau 20 240 75
URoHOMHKA Ha 3acTpaxoBaHeTO H 10 120 65

HasecTunuuTe — 2 49act

0611 yerniex: OTauyue BTOpa CTENCH (TopHO HUBO)
JlaTa HA U3gaBaHe Ha AUIIAOMAaTa: M. JOAH 2006 r.
YaoctoBepeHue 3a rpuaobura obpasoBaTesHa CTENCH No 080179

OpPUTrHHAAHOTO YAOCTOBEPEHHE € NOANIEYATAHO C peaecduns nevar Ha
YuusepcureT [lopTreMyT
057856

Ileuart Ha PeaedpeH nedaT Ha
YuusepcuteT [lopTCeMyT YrugepcureT [TopTcMyT

C HaCTOALIETO YAOCTOBEPABaM, Y€ OPUIHHAAHOTO YnocToBEpeHHE 3a

Ouerkd (AxkagemudHa CripaBka), H3AAAEHO HA CTYACHTA, IIOCOYEH Ha

Ir>pBaTa CTPaHMIla Ha YIAOCTOBEPCHMCTO, H30aJ€HO OT YHUBEPCUTET
TTopTCMyT, KOHTO aBTEHTHIHOCTTA MY ITPCA MCH.

[ToanucaHo Ha 01-BH I0AH 2008 r.

B Pendower House, Cumberland Business Centre,
Northumberland Road, Portsmouth, Hampshire
(Nennaysp Xayc, BusHec 2KeHTBP KambbpaaHn,
Hoprxambbpaann Poyna, IIopTeMyT, Xemrupl

or: -

(rozmuc — HE ce YeTe)
JL.E. AHTXBCBAH/
ObwecrseH Horapuyc

APOSTILE
(HAGUE CONVENTION OF 05 OCTOBER 1 961 /CONVENTION DE LA HAYEDO D QOcCTOBRE1961 )
ATTIOCTHA o
(XArCKA KOHBEHLIMA OT 05 OKTOMBPH 1961) /@@ E:?—l:;’f;’%% \
OBEAMHEHO KPAACTBO BEAUKOBPUTAHUA U CEB A 1P )

[}

B o Y T
1. [Ispxkasa: ObeauneHo KpaacTso Beaukobpura H’v{ HQeR




T = To3u my6AHYEH AOKYMCHT
2. e noanucas oT Ae#dsua E. Siarxecbann

3. B KauecTBOTO My Ha O6mecTBen HoTapmuyc

4. HocH nedara/KAeMOTO Ha HOCOYEHEAT OGmecTBen HoTapryc

7 3ABEPEHO
5. B AOHIIOH 6. Ha 07 xoam 2008 r.
it ot Taasuus [Iepxasen Cekperap Ha HefHo BeauuecTBO 110

BBIIPOCUTE HA BBHHIHUTE pabotu u Ha Bpuranckara oBb1EHOCT
8. rton, Ne H840945

9. Kaetimo /leqaT 10. Moaruc

(Illopruc — He ce yere)
TMEYAT: MusHCTEPCTBO Ha BBHILIHUTE 3a [IvpxkasHus Cexkperap
Paboru ¥ BLIPOCHTE Ha BpuTaHCKaTa Jxax MHAHI'BH

O61mHoCT — AOHAOH

CYX TTEYAT: MuHHCTEPCTBO Ha BBHIIHUATE
Pa6oTH M BBIpocHTe BpHTAHCKATA OGLIHOCT
NOHIIOH

Axo TO3H NOKYMeHT me Ce M3NOA3YBa B ABPIKABA, KOATO HE & cTpaHa no
Xarckara Komeernas or 05 oxromspa 1961 r., Toi TpnbBa na ce mpeACTaBH B
KOHCYACKHST OTHAEA Ha MHCHATA, OPEACTABANBAMA TAIH ABPHABA.
ATIOCTHAET HAM YJIOCTOBEPEHHETO 3@ ACTAAH3AlHA CaMo noTBLPKAABAT, Y€ MOJIHCAE,
meuaTa MAM KAEHMOTO BBPXY AOKYMEHTA CA aBTEHTHHHH. ToBa He 03HA4YaBa, 4e
CBIBPIKAHHETO HA JIOKYMEHTA € BAPHO HAH Y€ MUHUCTEPCTBOTO HA BEHIIHATE
PaBoTi U BBIPOCHTE Ha Bpuranckara OBLITOCT MOTEBEPKIABA TOBA ChIBPKAHHE.

UK HA HPUAOHCEHUA  DOKYMERN
wern Tlopmerym). Tlpesocwm ce

om Mer npesod om aHZAUBCKE WA VB
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EIH: 7104057654 ™ YIOCTOBERSRA HOANKCR HA DPenoaata. |

MuuucTeperBo va BLHUIRETE prbory
HE HOCH OTTOBOPHOCT 38 BEPHUCTIY
Pa npeBujia. |
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l_cerfify‘t.his:‘is the original Degree Certificate

APOSTILLE
(Hague Convention of § October 1961 / Convention de La Haye du 5 octobre 1961)

UNITED KINGDOM OF GREAT BRITAIN AND NORTHERN IRELAND
i, Country: United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern lreland
Pays: Rovaume-Uni de Grande-Bretagne et d'Irlande du Nord

This public document / Le présent acte public

1

Has been signed by David E Younghushand
a £1é SIgne par

3. Acting in the capacity of  Notary Public
agissant en qualité de

4 Bears the seal/siamp of  The Said Notary Public
est revétu du scean/timbre de

Certified/ Atteslé
5. at London/a Londres & thelle 07 July 2008

7. by Her Majesty’s Principal Secretary of State for Foreign and Commoenwealth Affairs /

par le Secvétaire d'Etat Principal de Sa Majesté aux Affaires Etrangéres et du Commonwealth.

B Numbet/sous No H840946

4. Stamp: 10. Signatre:  Jack Milligan
timbre:

J

o

- ./
g v
Fod <]
A

(o

For the Secretsry of Seate ¢ Pour le Secretaire A Eras

IF this docwment is to be used in a country which is not party to the Hague Convention o

1961, it should be presented to the consular section of the mission representing that country. An
apostille or legalisation certificate anly confirms that the signature, seal or stamp on the document is

genuine. It does not mean that the contents of the document are correct or that the Foreign &
Commonwealth Office approves of the conlents.



I certify this is the original Degree Certificate
granted to the Student named on the front of
the Certificate issued by the University of
Portsmouth who have confirmed its authenticity
to me.

Signed this / ¢ day of /AIL) 200&

At Pendower House, Cumberland Business Centre,
Northumberland Road, Portsmouth, Hampshire

...............................................................

D E YOUNGHUSBAND
NOTARY PUBLIC
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OnuTteH, OTTOBOPEH U MOTUBMPaH NPodEcKoHANUCT Cbe 3aabNBoYeHn NO3HaHWA B 0BNAcTTa, CUAHO 3HANUTHYHO
MWCNEHE, PbKOBOAHW YMEHWA W cNDCOGHOCT 33 CaMOCTOATENHO M 060CHOBaHO B3emMaHe Ha peleHUA. YNpaBnAsa 1
KOHTPOAWpa BCUYKKM PUHAHCOBM, OTHETHM M BlOAMETHW OAEMHOCTH Ha KomMnaHuATa, EQeKTMBHO pewasaHeTo Ha
npobnemi 6e3 ornes W3TO4HWUKE Ha BUHa. ONUT B HaBMPaHETO Ha NepcoHan U YNpaeneHUeTo Ha xopa.

TPYZ,0B CTAN

01.03.2013 - 03.01.2019

21.02.2008 - 01.03.2013

01.09.2005 - 20.02.2008

PuHaHCOBO-cHETOBOAHA cdepa - 141, 9 mec., 25 aHn

InaseH cuetosoauTen (PuroBoanTen Ha duHaHcoB oTaen), MapeeHa QuarHocTrka, EMK 200600292
OpraHm3vpa ¥ puKoBOAM fedHocTTa Ha duHaHcoswa otgen; OTroBapa 3a ¢UHaHCOBATa OTYETHOCT Ha rpyna ot
¢dupmm c pasHoobpa3dHa WKkoHOMMHYecka aeiHocT - MapeeHa [narHocTika EOOL, Mapeena 00f, MapeeHa M
004, EcretueH ueHTsp MarHa Biotu 004, BI Mea EOOL, Ky6c OO/, 3se3gHa apeHa — My3WKanHa KOMNaHua
000 w ap.; OpraHnW3vpa W OCHILECTBABA TEKYL, M NOCNEABaly, BbTPeweH $GWHAHCOE KOHTPOA NO CNa3BaHe Ha
$uHaHCOBaTa AMCUMNAMHA; Y4acTsBa B Cb3faBaHeTo M NPWNaraHeTO Ha BLTPELWHO-0PraHW3auWoHHK NPaBMNa;
OpraHusnpa M KOHTpONMpa npoueca Ha GlogMHeTvpane; YNpaenasa M3IXOOALUMTE NapuYHK NOTOLWM M aHanuivpa
BXOAALWMTE TAKMBA, NNAHWPa NapUYHWUTE NOTOUM, MOEHTHOMUWPa HeobxogumocTTa oT 06opoTHY CpeacTea v aasa
npeanoweHna 3a HabasaHeTo wm; W3sbpwBsa npeasapWTeneH npernen M CbrAacyBaHe Ha nNpegcToAwm 3a
CKNIOYBAHE AOrOBOPM WM [3B3 CTaHOBMLUE OTHOCHD MKOHOMMYECKaTa MM 0BOCHOBKE W nNoOcNeacTemA 3a
apyskecteata; Mogbop Ha Kagpu B pamkuTe Ha ¢uHaHcoB oTaen; Cecrasa MO, AL, mecedHa, roguilHa u
KpaTKOCPO4YHa OTHETHOCT KbM HCW; OpraHuavpa W3roTERHETO HAa MEMAWHHW GUHAHCOBM CTYETH, aHanuiaupa
AAHHMTE M AOKNaAea Ha pbHoBoAcTeoro; MNpendcrasnAsa Apymecrsata npeg HAN, HOW, BaHen W ynpamHsaea
HOHTPON 33 CNa3BaHeTo Ha CPOKOBETE 33 NOAABAHE HA AaHHM, KAKTO M HOCW OTTOBOPHOCT 33 AOCTOBEPHOCTTA UM;
MNoaabpHa BPbaKK C 0AMTOPK, AaHBYHATA 3AMWHUCTPALMA M APYIY BBHIIHM OPraHu1 33 MOHWUTOPMHT.

JamecTHUK rnaseH cueroBoguTen, Mapeena, EMK 121677845

WaroTen ropvier duHaHCoB oT4eT, chrnacHo HCC, rogMwHa AanbyHa AeKNapaLMa W CTATUCTTMYECKE OTHETHOCT Ha
ApYHecTsoTo; MHWUMKMPa M KOHTPONMPA U3NBAHEHMETO Ha EPEKTMBHM METDAM Ha paboTa, KAcaewW KOPEKTHOTO
CYETOBOAHO OTPaMeHWe Ha AeWHOCTT3 Ha ApymecTeoTo; M3roTes, aHanuM3upa M AOKN3ABA KbM PLHOBOACTBOTO
EeHEeMECEYHM PMHAHCOBM OTYETH M ADYIY CNPaBKA 33 UEAWTE Ha yNpaeneHWeTo; M3roTeA W Nofasa MeceqHW
cnpaskn-gexnapaumn no 340C w wHTpacTar gexknapaumik; M3roTea BEODOMOCTW 33 3aniaTtw, Havyncnasa paboTHW
3aNNaTH U Bb3HATPaMALHWA NO W3BBHTPYAOBM NpasooTHOWeHWA; M3roTes M nogaea geknapauumn O6pasey 1 u 6,
KaKTO W yBEAOMAEHWMA NO 4n. 62, an.5 oT KT; YyacTea 8 WMHBEHTApWM3aUWMMTE Ha aKTMBMTE Ha APYHECTBOTO,
HagnemHo opOpMA W OTpa3ABa pesynTaTuTe oT TAx; lJasemna CAM w JAMN Ha gpymectsoTo; KomyHukvpa
eeKTHBHO C BaHKK, OAWUTOPH M APYIU KOHTPOAHW OPraHm.

3amecTHHK rnaseH cyerosoguTen, Qaipere, EMK 131445266

Wsrotea duHaHcosmu oTyeTH, curnacHo MCC v avTMBHO yHacTBa B rogMLIHOTO hHHAHCOBO NpuKniodBaHe; Efextuaro
KOMYHMHMPa € 0AWMTOPM; M3BbpLUBA CYETOBOAEH aHANM3 HAa NPUXOAWTE WM PA3XOAMTE HA NPEANPWUATMETO W
aHanusMpa OTKAOHEeHWATa OT BIoAMETMPaHUTE CTONHOCTH; W3rOTBA MENAMHHKM PUHIHCOBK OTHETH W YNPABNEHCKW
Cnpasky; TEKYLLO HAYUCNABA AOKYMEHTH, aMOPTHUIALMUK U AP.; AH3NW3IWPa PEHTABMAHDCT NO KNMEHTH, MaPsHOBE NO
rPYNK CTOKM ¥ AOCTAaBYMUM; AKTMEHO Y4acTBa NpW BHeApABaHeTo Ha ERP codtyep; AHanv3vpa BU3Hec npouecuTe B
ERP Navision [Microsoft Dynamics NAV) w KopeKTHOCTTa Ha oTpaseHata MHGOPMaLmA; MHMLMUPa QONBAHUTENHHN
0paboTkK, pa3paboTBa HOBKM 33A3HWA W W TECTRA.

OBPA3SOBAHMUE
YHUBEPCUTET 3A HALLMOHANHO U CBETOBHO CTOMAHCTBO, rp. Codua
2006 - 3007 MarucTep, cnedymanHocT CueToBoacTEO
2001 - 2005 Bawanasbp, cneyuanHoct CUBTORDACTRO U KOHTPON
YMEHKWA

YnpaBieH1e Ha eHun, cTpaTerv4ecKo MUCIEHe W NJaHKpaHe, NPUopPUTM3MpaHe Ha paGoTHMA npouec, ONWT BbE
sHeapasaHe Ha ERP codryep, pabota (HmBo aamuHuctpaTop) ¢ ERP codryep (Microsoft Dynamics NAV, Atlas) u
codTyep 3a 3annatu Payroll, Microsoft Excel, Microsoft Word, Photoshop, AHrnuiicku esux (B2).

CBOBOAHO BPEME

®ortarpacdmna, Yetene, MuTewecTana



ey
ey

ot 'Lf:

4

¥

e
g
L 4
A

X

&
3
¥

:

¥i
1..“n
o
1 § gl
e, W iy
Lt V1 Ty
B oy v e
b "
=) & i -
A4

BNdVIV99 VINVIALIA

Fi
r % P
e

"1 LOOTPO'9T/899 ON
BHIHWOM BPHLMITH vieHgesdar e roxovrodyy

09 uLnrady nodo moQ
00°'9 HOhHI'LO :BL0gBd BHWOXTIHY BH BLHINEE LO BMXHIN(Q)
0p'S degorHA :anHIKAQO BH BIdAM 10 XamdA Havad)

anuandgo vu vwdogf vrusopad

4 09uQOs0WIN)), ¥nhvenvonhau) 222
vodwunox n 09waQo90Wany)

unonvonhaud ou

(I CRREITER N T i
aNHIhAQO BH ddAM HOMHAYOIOHID
enuros L0z ado nmdasget
sudeiraq edAroAnd J en HuEeIMedl
sudelraq exurgAud g
C K da g
‘GHHN0 - 2250< em emaved ¢ k0 HIE
e L ON HararrAxed

VEAHAL VIIhWHI VIITVd




HILIALD YHHOUTIWINOUVYEN-OHVILVEOEVYdIO VH
INHVEOEVdIO IIMDNE VE

VWOVLIY ‘w‘ -

%a&c%u
@@E&é omgoutags
n §$~%ﬁ3 v¥ gﬁ%&& 7




uf WD, 3 BLENIHH-JUN B',,) HILHILO,, 3 RIENOIHE-YEN
OLBON il * PWIALIND BLEHITEQOLIMNM Ol ¥ SLHNHIMN)

1 oﬂnnﬂﬂogm M

g dagow ‘mpy

0g ot
§ dwgov up Of Of ¥ AANENHHANONIRING ¢
9 WRHENL) (Jf OF ¥ suvasdino
omwediodn 1 ox0oRHEXaL on ddiumn) g
9 HRVLD Of 0F 4 dor9d sunconeHnIn §
LHAMWKIHHIN HOYOR0LIhI-0U0IHEHEG *|
9 WL ) 99 ¥ do1va0 susoIHEHN(
114 CALIV0HCLIRY ou dennme) meddLLnE g
9 HaLMULO) @Ff Of s spsndnvady aunsoonennd
BH H12b10 JLHE0INEHED BN CHIEHY °§
sdwors of 0f S OLLIN0801INI oscouEHRD ont ML) y ¥ LOOT'S'ST/B010 ON Hamommed.ionsad
g dagow ‘v OFf Of § oLLToRoLIhd oxdnareedul ou adimmany ¢ i 2 sl
Sdvinme of 60 £ B ol i LIVS00 ON * 900Z-DDHA
G my of 06 § 0L0815K0ROLIRS & MIroNm # HWOLI> ‘Wdody ] ‘BWOIMNHY £3Q ORIHIBEIH d olaHBIWOrAd]|
ENEING) ‘A CIr HiHTady mouvedn w nioged weoddin oN
wiadedoy "EHEVURIOEY HHGIL
9HHOKAQO vH eWwdod enaowad
ed49.L00W20 BET
BHAYOJ BHY?
OLOHHORAQO BH LOOHIra LIKIrdrod] | §1 :mnrady podg
wOELOT0E0.10h)),, KHIIBEHIFEHNION ) 290 HILHIrLQ) :eLoged BLEHWOIIIHY BR BLHIEBE 10 BXHIN(Q
rodLiHOY H 0€1OI'OHOLSh))
LOOHI'VHAITALID
QLMNHEQ € LHHEHIOdN H
VATHAL VEThWHIT VIITVd vH
HUNHCOLOND ILHEONOHd BH EHI'BHE HAYOLOLIh))
detoniepy

VWAL o4 YV LOIVd VHWOITLIHI VHALHITIVE
: Sy manrady nodg
fov's/ dagornpy :QLAHVETAID LO XALIDA HATALD

HALALO VHHOUITVIHOHI VE-OHIMALVE0EVd90 VH
dUHVHOEVd90 FIIOUE VE VIWOLLINT WO

JHHAXOITHd LT




OEKNAPALMA

no un. 107, an. 4 u 5 ot 3akoHa 3a HE3aBUCUMUA PUHAHCOB OAUT

JdonynoanucaHata, Pagka Jumuyesa MNeHeBa, B KAYECTBOTO MU Ha KaHAMAAT 38 YNEH Ha 0AUTHUA
KomuteT Ha ,lpagyc” Af, BnucaHo B TbProBCKWA perucTsp npu AreHuwara no snuceaHuata, EMK
204882907, cbC ceganuvuie 1 agpec Ha ynpaeneHuwe: rp. Ctapa 3aropa, .K. UHAyCcTpuaneH, nocnegHoTo
npeanpusaTe oT oDOWEeCTBeH MHTepec Mo cmucbaa Ha § 1, 1. 22, Byksa ,a” OT AOMbAHUTENHUTE
pa3znopeabu Ha 3aKOHa 3a CYETOBOACTBOTO, C HACTOALLATA

AERNTAPUPAM:

1. He CbM Y/IEH Ha YNPaBUTENHUA OpraH unu chyxuten Ha ,Mpagyc’ AL AL;
2. HE CbM NIULIE, KOETO € B TPalHU TbProBCKMU OTHOLWLEHWA ¢, Mpaayc” AL;
3. He CbM Y/1€H Ha YNPaBUTENEH MW HAA30PEH OpraH, NPOKYPHUCT AWM CNYXUTEN Ha NIMLEe NOo T. 2;

4. He CbM CBBLP3AHO /IMLE C APYT YNEH HA YyNpaBUTENEH UK HaA30peH opraH Ha ,Mpaagyc” AL

M3BeCTHa MU e OTTOBOPHOCTTA, KOATO HOCA Ha OCHOBaHWE Y. 313 0T HakasaTe/NIHMA KOAEKC Ha
Penybnuka Bbarapusa 3a AeKNapUpaHe Ha HeBEPHU AaHHM

23.04.2019r. .
rp. Copusa % /
V4 /é
[Leknaparop: :f/," t

/Papka Aumyesa NeHesa/



ABTOBUOI'PADIA

Ilerss Panocaasosa IlanoBa - UBaHoBa

OBPA30OBAHUME

® Bucuwe obpaszosanue:

10.2007-
2009

10. 2002-
02. 2007

09. 2000-
06.2002

UNIVERSITY OF PORTSMOUTH Portsmouth, UK

Mazucmwvp no Qunancu
Maructsp

YHuBepcuTeT 32 HANMOHAIHO CBeTOBHO cTonaHcTBO Codus Codust, bparapus
Qunancu
bakanasvp

TEXHUYECKHU YHUBEPCUTET CO®UA Coc¢wus, berrapus
En. Enepreruka u ej. odbopyaBane
baxanasvp

e (CpeoHo obpazosaHue:

09. 1995-
06. 2000

COY ”I-P UBAH ITAHOB* Berkovitza, Bulgaria

WORK EXPERIENCE

10. 2009
cera

06. 2008-
12. 2008

02. 2008-
06. 2008

Obb
Cs. Coous 5, TpexxbpH 1 KalMTAIOBY MMa3apu

Munvp

HAMPSHIRE CREDIT UNION
97 Fratton Road, Portsmouth, Hampshire, PO 1 5AG
Loan Officer

STAFF FINDER CATERING AGENCY LTD
29 Landport Terrace, Southsea, Hampshire, PO 1 2RG
Tel: (023) 9281 2725
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07. 2007- “Umpo” EOO/
08. 2007 busnec nmapk Mnagoct 4, crpaga 1, 1766, Codust
Tel: +359 (02) 489630
E-mail: info@imro.bg
Oopabomka Ha 0aHHU — 8peMeHeH RPOeKm
(Komynukayus ¢ Knuenmu Ha Yoacmpuiim 0xcopHat)

12. 2005- “I:xenc” S.p.Ltd

07.2007 Mnanocr 1, 1784, Codus, brirapus
Tel: +359 888 332 447
E-mail: gens_em@abv.bg
Menuoxcop Ilpooasrccou

JNOITBJIHUTEJIHA KBAJIMOUKALINA

11. 2018 CEPTUHO®UKAT 3A BPOKEP OT K®OH

01. 2016 Ceprudukar Ha BHbB 3a cemunap ,,Munumaanu pe3epBu Ha 6ankute B BHB*

(effective as of 4 January 2016)”

01. 2010 CepTudukar 3a 1ubp oT MuHMCTEPCTBO HA DUHAHCUTE
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